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DEHCHO DIVISIONAL EDUCATION COUNCIL 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

Note 32. GNWT Other Contributions 

2019 2018 

Municipal and Community Affairs 
Sports and youth programs $ 47,000 $ 21,929 
Sport strategy 127,140 127,140 
Children and youth resiliency 13,636 13,363 
Active after school 17,850 102,260 
Mental health youth conference 9,000 
Other 20,000 10,000 

Environment and Natural Resources 
Take a kid trapping 56,937 16,636 

Health and Social Services 
Drop the pop 17,018 13,440 
Breakfast for learning 1,700 
Youth conference 25,000 

Contributions repaid (13,636) 
Deferred revenue - GNWT, opening 53,938 10,941 
Deferred revenue - GNWT, closing (40,948} !53,938}

$ 300,635 $ 295,771 

Note 33. Contingent Assets - Nil Report 

Note 34. Contractual Rights - Nil Report 
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Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 
 

Introduction 
The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the Sahtu Divisional Education Council (SDEC) 
financial performance provides an overall review of the Board's financial activities for the fiscal year ended 
June 30th 2019.  The intent of this discussion and analysis is to attest on a go-forward basis the responsibility 
of management and the Council Members to promote transparency and accountability. Readers should also 
review the notes to the financial statements and the financial statements to enhance their understanding of 
the Sahtu Divisional Education Council financial performance. 
 

What is the SDEC? 
The Sahtu Divisional Education Council (SDEC) is responsible, under the Education Act, for all K-12 
education in the Sahtu region.  There are five schools in the district.  In each community, a locally elected 
District Education Authority (DEA) is responsible for education in that community.  The District Education 
Council (DEC) is made up of one member from each DEA and one chairperson.   
As per the Education Act of the Northwest Territories, the SDEC is responsible to provide quality education 
to the residents of the Sahtu region.  It is our hope that by reading this document, members of our community 
will receive valuable information on the infrastructure of the education system in the North and become 
involved in their community government.  
 
Mission 
To provide excellent educational environments where students will have the opportunity to experience 
success and contribute to society. 
 
Council of Trustees  
 
Chairperson 
Karea Peachy – Norman Wells 
 
Vice-Chairperson 
Heather Bourassa – Fort Good Hope 
 
 
Jennifer Waterhouse – Norman Wells 
Isabel Orlias – Colville Lake 
Miranda Baton-Taneton  – Deline 
Sally-Ann Horassi - Tulita 
 
 
The management team of the SDEC comprised of the following; 
Superintendent – Seamus Quigg 
Assistant Superintendent – Renee Closs 
Comptroller – Harry Cassie  
 
 
 
 
 
 



Financial Condition 
Revenues exceeded expenditures for a surplus of ($361k), (2018-($256k)), compared to budgeted deficit of 
($12k). This resulted in a surplus fund balance $266k (2018, ($95k)) as at June 30th 2019.  Additional 
revenues of $832k (2018-$831k) was received resulted in additional expenses incurred compared to budget.   
 
Revenues have been trending positively compared to budget as a result of new initiatives, this is consistent 
year over year.  
 

   

Accumulated surplus (deficit) is comprised of the following:                
                          2019 

 
 

                       2018 

Accumulated Surplus/ (Deficit), beginning of year (95,014) (351,141) 

Operating Surplus / (Deficit)                       266,262                      167,699  

Post - employment benefits                        105,102                               88,428 

Accumulated Surplus/ Deficit, end of year  $    266,350              $       (95,014) 
 
 
The current ratio, is a liquidity and efficiency ratio that measures an organization’s ability to pay off its 
short-term liabilities with its current assets. Sahtu DEC current ratio as at June 30th 2019 is 1.5, (2018, 0.97).   
 

 
 
 

 
        

 
 



Summary and Outlook 
 
The SDEC’s vision for education has been to provide excellence in teaching and learning within contexts 
that honour the culture and language of the community. Caring schools allow all students to achieve success, 
as defined by individual students’ dreams, aspirations and abilities. Learning continues beyond secondary 
school and students are equipped to meet the demands of changing times by having the skills of life-long 
learners.  
 
In 2018-2019, Growing Forward Together captures the Sahtu schools’ leadership goal to collaborate widely 
to find innovative solutions to historical challenges in education, while moving forward jointly with 
community leadership’s vision for its children and what the community aspires to become.  With the new 
school year, 2019-2020 underway, the Sahtu DEC looks move from visioning to implementation, a series 
of strategic planning meetings are scheduled for each community in coming months to determine 
community-specific next steps. 
 
Priorities 
Reading and Writing: School-based and standardized assessments are in place to determine where 
interventions and enrichment are needed, and to maintain fidelity to curriculum standards.  Comprehensive 
Literacy (Balanced Literacy) is offered in all five schools, along with Levelled Literacy Intervention to 
assist struggling readers.  This approach recognizes the diversity of learners within our grade 1-9 classrooms 
and is a rigorous sustainable way of addressing learning gaps and promoting growth.  Writing is monitored 
with region-wide rubrics, with writing samples captures three times in the year (grades 1-12) to trace 
learning growth. This action plan aligns with community expectations that reading and writing are 
fundamental to learning and all students should reach the optimal growth they can in these skills.   
  
Numeracy: Numeracy learning in grades 1-8 is monitored through curriculum-aligned formative 
assessments.  Teachers are receiving on-going professional development to integrate these assessments into 
daily practice, along with 21st Century approaches to teaching mathematical thinking and numeracy 
competencies.   
 
Language, Culture and Identity: 2018/19 saw the five schools transition to the Our Languages Curriculum 
(OLC).  Indigenous Language Educators participated in training in Yellowknife and in their home 
communities, and whole school staffs in four out of five schools received training in whole school 
approaches to language revitalization.  Locally developed courses at the grade 10-12 levels promote culture, 
language, land programs, and the formation of northern identity in high school students.  Land and culture 
programs invite participation by Elders, land experts, and cultural leaders in our communities.  School 
community connections are strengthened by these programs.   
 
 

Total Student/Teacher Population by Schools 
 
 

2019 Students Teachers 
Mackenzie Mountain – Norman Wells 166.5 13.0 
Chief Albert Wright - Tulita 78.5 9.0 
Chief T’Selehye – Fort Good Hope 129.0 12.0 
Ehtseo Ayha – Deline              105.5 10.0 
Coville Lake – Colville Lake 57.5 5.5 
Totals 537.0 49.5 

 





To the Minister of Education, Culture and Employment of the GNWT
To the Board of Trustees of the Sahtu Divisional Education Council

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Sahtu Divisional Education Council, which comprise                       
the consolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2019, and the consolidated statements of operations
and surplus, changes in net assets (debt), and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, except for the possible effect of the matters described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph,  
these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of 
the Sahtu Divisional Education Council as at June 30, 2019, and the results of its financial performance and cash 
flow for the year then ended in accordance with the Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Government of the Northwest Territories is responsible for the calculation and distribution of the Education 
Body's wages and benefits expenditure for public service employees, the accuracy of which is not susceptible to 
complete audit verification.  We have satisfied ourselves that the payroll information provided by the GNWT is  
properly reflected in the Education Body's records.  As a result, we were not able to determine whether any 
adjustments might be necessary to expenditure, liabilities or accumulated surplus.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in  
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Education Body's ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the  
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Education Body or to  
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Education Body's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are  
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes  
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian 
generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Suite 8 - 6 Courtoreille Street
Hay River, NT  X0E 1G2
PH: (867) 874-6775
FX:  (867) 874-3775
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the  
Education Body's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates  
and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Education Body's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude  
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Education Body to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We further report, in accordance with the Financial Administration Act, that, in our opinion, proper books of
account have been kept by the Education Body, the consolidated financial statements are in agreement therewith,
and the transactions that have come under our notice have, in all significant aspects, been within the statutory
powers of the Education Body.

ASHTON
Chartered Accountants Hay River, NT
Business Advisors September 25, 2019
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Sahtu Divisional Education Council
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Surplus

For the year ended June 30, 2019

Budget Actual Actual
2019 2019 2018

Revenue
Government of the Northwest Territories   

ECE Regular Contributions $ 14,354,597     $ 14,503,310    $ 14,317,648   
Teaching and Learning Centres 55,000            120,000         307,000        
French Language Instruction 55,000            55,000           55,000          
ECE Other Contributions, Note 31 -                  138,427         53,077          

Total ECE 14,464,597     14,816,737    14,732,725   
  

GNWT Other Contributions, Note 32 -                  349,846         377,575        

Total GNWT $ 14,464,597     $ 15,166,583    $ 15,110,300   

Jordan's Principle -                  96,483           -                

Total Government of Canada -                  96,483           -                

Education council generated funds
Interest income 30,000            70,587           51,186          
Other 12,000            205,853         151,211        

42,000            276,440         202,397        

14,506,597     15,539,506    15,312,697   

Expenses
Administration 962,853          1,177,310      1,057,308     
School programs 9,476,933       10,088,184    10,331,123   
Inclusive schooling 2,517,234       2,521,949      2,053,991     
Operations and maintenance 148,952          139,973         140,359        
Aboriginal languages 1,412,322       1,355,828      1,562,217     

14,518,294     15,283,244    15,144,998   

Operating Surplus (Deficit) before other item $ (11,697)          $ 256,262         $ 167,699        

Other item:
Other employee future benefits and compensated absences, Note 17 -                  105,102         88,428          

$ (11,697)          $ 361,364         $ 256,127        

Accumulated surplus (Deficit), beginning of year $ (95,014)          $ (351,141)      

Accumulated surplus (deficit), end of year   $ 266,350         $ (95,014)        
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Sahtu Divisional Education Council
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets (Debt)

For the year ended June 30, 2019

2019 2018

Annual surplus (deficit) $ 361,364         $ 256,127        
Change in prepaid expenses (27,209)          7,453            

Increase (decrease) in net financial resources     334,155         263,580        

Net financial resources, beginning of year (114,374)        (377,954)      
Net financial resources, end of year  $ 219,781         $ (114,374)      
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Sahtu Divisional Education Council
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

For the year ended June 30, 2019

 2019 2018 

Cash provided by (used in):
Operating Transactions

Operating Surplus (Deficit) $ 361,364         $ 256,127        

361,364         256,127        

Change in non-cash assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (686,740)        (32,229)        
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (64,289)          115,671        
Payroll liabilities 499,546         (31,658)        
Deferred revenue 631,716         115,236        
Post-employment benefits (105,102)        (88,428)        
Prepaid expenses (27,209)          7,453            

247,922         86,045          

Increase (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 609,286         342,172        

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 3,009,967      2,667,795     

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 3,619,253      $ 3,009,967     

Consists of:
Cash $ 3,260,052      $ 2,610,687     
Special purpose funds 359,201         399,280        

$ 3,619,253      $ 3,009,967     
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Sahtu Divisional Education Council
Consolidated Detail of Expenses

For the year ended June 30, 2019

School Inclusive Student   Operations & Aboriginal 2019 2019 2018
Function Programs Schooling Accom.  Maintenance Administration Languages Total Budget Total

Salaries
Teachers' salaries $ 6,840,834 $ 1,128,547 $ -   $ -   $ -   $ 1,181,103 $ 9,150,484 $ 9,183,313 $ 9,128,545
Instruction assistants 6,562 873,987 -   -   -   57,366 937,915 1,021,658 895,719
Non-instructional staff 1,141,584 264,700 -   -   733,618 -   2,139,902 1,969,299 2,145,070
Board/Trustee honorarium -   -   -   -   44,405 40,861 85,266 76,000 80,703

7,988,980 2,267,234 -   -   778,023 1,279,330 12,313,567 12,250,270 12,250,037

Employee Benefits
Employee benefits and allowances 7,298 -   -   -   -   -   7,298 69,000 21,668
Leave and termination benefits 436,608 -   -   -   -   -   436,608 479,000 388,227

443,906 -   -    -    -   -   443,906 548,000 409,895

Services Purchased/Contracted
Professional services 519,224 22,089 -   -   -   -   541,313 534,872 567,150
Postage and communication 40,167 -   -   -   34,882 -   75,049 36,000 78,384
Utilities  

Heating -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   6,729
Electricity -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
Water/Sewage -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Travel 140,657 74,775 -   -   64,363 21,103 300,898 235,000 302,322
Student transportation (busing) 150,536 -   -   -   -   -   150,536 175,000 194,500
Advertising/printing/publishing 629 -   -   -   -   -   629 2,000 3,437
Maintenance and repair 36,548 -   -   4,200 -   -   40,748 7,200 24,942
Rentals and leases -   -   -   135,773 -   -   135,773 141,752 144,254
Other contracted services 41,960 -   -   -   50,456 28,613 121,029 51,500 180,401
Other 27,141 12,099 -   -   117,815 -   157,055 119,500 131,335

956,862 108,963  -    139,973  267,516 49,716 1,523,030 1,302,824 1,633,454

Materials, Supplies and Freight
Materials 657,079 142,476 -   -   130,080 26,444 956,079 275,700 801,205
Freight 41,357 3,276 -   -   1,691 338 46,662 15,500 50,407               

698,436 145,752 -    -    131,771 26,782 1,002,741 291,200 851,612

Contributions/Transfers
Transfers -   -   -   -   -   -   -   126,000 -   

Debt Services
Other -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Total $ 10,088,184 $ 2,521,949 $ -   $ 139,973 $ 1,177,310 $ 1,355,828 $ 15,283,244 $ 14,518,294 $ 15,144,998
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SAHTU DIVISIONAL EDUCATION COUNCIL
Aboriginal Language and Cultural-based Education Expenses

For the year ended June 30, 2019

School Activities
Teaching/ and Integrated

Student Learning Professional Community 2019
Instruction Resources Development Programs Total

Salaries
ALCBE teachers $ 1,181,103 $ -   $ -   $ -   $ 1,181,103
Language consultants -   -   -   -   -   
Instruction assistants 57,366  -   -   -   57,366
Non-instructional staff -   -   -   -   -   
Honoraria -   -   -   -   -   
Elders in schools -   -   -   40,861 40,861

1,238,469 -   -   40,861 1,279,330

Employee Benefits
Employee benefits and allowances -   -   -   -   -   

 
Services Purchased/Contracted

Professional services -   -   -   -   -   
Postage and communication -   -   -   -   -   
Travel 21,103 -   -   -   21,103
Student transportation (busing) -   -   -   -   -   
Advertising, printing and publishing -   -   -   -   -   
Maintenance and repairs -   -   -   -   -   
Rentals and leases -   -   -   -   -   
Other contracted services 28,613 -   -   -   28,613

49,716 -    -    -   49,716

Materials, Supplies and Freight
Materials 26,444 -   -   -   26,444
Freight 338 -   -   -   338

26,782 -   -    -   26,782

Total $ 1,314,967 $ -   $ -   $ 40,861 $ 1,355,828
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Sahtu Divisional Education Council
Aboriginal Languages       

For the year ended June 30, 2019

 
July 1 to April 1 to  

March 31 June 30 Total 

Contribution Agreement
Aboriginal Languages
Revenues  

Funding Received $ 120,000     $ -             $ 120,000       

120,000     -              120,000       

Expenditure
Salaries 116,377     52,590       168,967       
Other O & M -             -             -               

116,377     52,590       168,967       

Net Surplus (Deficit) $ 3,623         $ (52,590)      $ (48,967)        
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Sahtu Divisional Education Council
Inclusive Schooling Expenses

For the year ended June 30, 2019

General
Inclusive Staff Assistive Magnet
Schooling Development Technology Facilities Total

Salaries
Program Support Teachers $ 1,128,547 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,128,547
Support Assistants 873,987 - -   -   873,987
Regional Coordinator 264,700 - -   -   264,700

2,267,234 -   -   -   2,267,234

Employee Benefits
Employee benefits and allowances -   -   -   -   -   

Services Purchased/Contracted
Professional/Technical Services 22,089 -   -   -   22,089
Travel 74,775 -   -   -   74,775
Student Transportation (Busing) -   -   -   -   -   
Advertising/Printing/Publishing -   -   -   -   -   
Maintence/Repair -   -   -   -   -   
Rentals/Leases -   -   -   -   -   
Other contracted services - 12,099 -   -   12,099

96,864 12,099 -   -   108,963

Materials, Supplies and Freight
Materials 142,476 -   -   -   142,476
Freight 3,276 -   -   -   3,276

145,752 -   -   -   145,752

Total $ 2,509,850 $ 12,099 $ - $ - $ 2,521,949
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Sahtu Divisional Education Council
French Language Programs

For the year ended June 30, 2019

ECE Commitment   
Contributions from Sahtu Expenses

July 1 to July 1 to  July 1 to
June 30 June 30 June 30

Special projects:
Core French Instruction $ 55,000       $ 131,420     $ 131,420       
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Sahtu Divisional Education Council
Jordan's Principal

For the year ended June 30, 2019

June 30, June 30, June 30,
2019 2019 2018

Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
Government of Canada $ $ $ -   
 First Nations and Inuit Health Branch 768,277 768,277 -   
Carry Forward from Previous Year -   -   -   

Total Revenue 768,277 768,277 -   
 

Expenses
Administration -   -   -   
Personnel 85,000 75,507 -   
Transportation 59,250 5,611 -   
Materials and Supplies 126,420 5,853 -   
Rent and Utilities -   -   -   
Evaluation -   9,512 -   
Other 497,607 -   -   

Total Expenses  768,277  96,483 -   

Net Surplus/(Deficit) $ -   $ 671,794 $ -   

Deferred revenue -             671,795     
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Sahtu Divisional Education Council
Northern Distance Learning

For the year ended June 30, 2019

 
 Fort July 1 to April 1 to

Budget Tulita Good Hope Deline Total March 31 June 30 Total

Revenue
Education, Culture and Employment $ 60,670 $ 21,027 $ 20,947 $ 18,696 $ 60,670 $ 60,670 $ -            $ 60,670
Other -   -   -   -   -   -   -            -   

60,670 21,027 20,947 18,696 60,670 60,670       -            60,670      

Expenses
Salaries/Wages
Instructional Staff -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Teachers -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
On-site support person 60,670 -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Non-Instructional Staff -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
Moodle (Online strategy) -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
DL Coordinator -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
PD - online learning field -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Other -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
-   -   -   

Services Purchased/Contracted -   -   -   
Network -   2,099 -   8,657 10,756 10,756 -   10,756
Travel -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Coordinator travel -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
Professional Development -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
Communication -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

In-service release -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
Other -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

IT support -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Materials, Supplies and Freight
Computer Equipment -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Document cameras -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
Phone -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
Laptop -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
Video (Monopad) -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
Wireless adapters and splitter -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Freight -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
Other -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
Total expenses 60,670 2,099 -   8,657 10,756 10,756 -   10,756

Net surplus/(deficit) $ -   $ 18,928 $ 20,947 $ 10,039 $ 49,914 $ 49,914 $ -   $ 49,914
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Sahtu Divisional Education Council
Student Success Initiative Projects

For the year ended June 30, 2019

School 
Year 

Revenue
Education, Culture and Employment $ 55,000       
NWTTA 42,000       

Total Revenue 97,000

Expenses
Salaries and wages

Facilitator fees (including per diems) 50,115       
Substitute teacher wages -             
Staff (p/y) -             

Travel
Facilitator travel 20,586       
Air charter -             
Staff travel 7,676         
Accommodations 5,735         
Daily per diems 1,650         

Workshop expenses
Room rental -             
Refreshments 895            
Resources 8,367         
Miscellaneous (stationary/printing) -             

Total Expenses 95,024       

Net Surplus (Deficit) $ 1,976         
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Sahtu Divisional Education Council
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019
 

Note 1. Nature of Organization

The Sahtu Divisional Education Council ("The Council") was established by the Education Act  of the
Government of the Northwest Territories (GNWT) by order of the Minister dated April 1, 1989. Its purpose
is to administer and maintain the standards of education program defined under the Education Act in the
communities in the Sahtu Region. 

Consequently, the Council is dependent on funding from the Department of Education, Culture, and 
Employment (ECE) of the GNWT. Member Communities have formed local District Education Authorities
(DEA) which have assumed responsibility to provide sufficient educational programs within their respective
communities.

The Council is an independent legal and accounting entity with an elected Board of Trustees as stipulated
in Section 82 of the Education Act.  The Board of Trustees has decision making authority, the power to
delegate authority, the ability to significantly influence operations and the sole accountability for all fiscal
matters. 

The Council is a public body performing a function of government in Canada. Paragraph 149(1)(C) of the 
Income Tax Act provides that a public body performing a function of government in Canada is exempt
from taxation. 

The accompanying consolidate financial statements include the operations of the Council, and the member         
District Education Authorities of Colville Lake, Deline, Fort Good Hope, Norman Wells, and Tulita.

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Accounting

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector 
accounting standards.  The consolidated financial statements have, in management’s opinion, been properly 
prepared with reasonable limits of materiality.  The basis of accounting refers to the timing of when revenue 
and expenditure items are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements.  The accrual 
basis of accounting is utilized for all funds.  Under this basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the 
accounting period in which they are earned and become measurable, and expenses are recorded when they 
are incurred.

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of bank account balances, net of outstanding cheques, and short
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to cash and with a maturity date of 90 days or less  
from the date of acquisition.

(c) Financial Instruments

Financial assets originated or acquired or financial liabilities issued or assumed in an arms' length transaction 
are initially measured at their fair value.  In the case of a financial asset or financial liability not subsequently 
measured at its fair value, the initial fair value is adjusted for financing fees and transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to its origination, acquisition, issuance or assumption.  Such fees and costs in respect of 
financial assets and liabilities subsequently measured at fair value are expensed.

Financial assets subsequently measured at amortized cost include cash, accountable funds, due from the          
GNWT and other accounts receivable.
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Sahtu Divisional Education Council
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019
 

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c) Financial Instruments

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortized cost include accounts payable and accrued liabilities, 
accrued salaries, deferred revenue, post-employment benefits and accountable funds.

At the end of each reporting period, management assesses whether there are any indications that financial 
assets measured at cost or amortized cost may be impaired.  If there is an indication of impairment, 
management determines whether a significant adverse change has occurred in the expected timing or the 
amount of future cash flows from the asset, in which case the asset’s carrying amount is reduced to the    
highest expected value that is recoverable by either holding the asset, selling the asset or by exercising the 
right to any collateral.  The carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly or through the use of an allowance 
account and the amount of the reduction is recognized as an impairment loss in operations.  Previously 
recognized impairment losses may be reversed to the extent of any improvement.  The amount of the reversal, 
asset is recognized in operations.

(d) Non-financial Assets

Prepaid expenses and other non-financial assets are accounted for as assets by the Education Body because 
they can be used to provide government services in future periods. These assets do not normally provide 
resources to discharge the liabilities of the Education Body.

(e) Tangible Capital Assets

All buildings and works, furniture, equipment and vehicles are the property of the GNWT. The Minister grants
to the Education Body the full occupancy and use of such facilities and equipment where required for the  
administration and delivery of education system programs.  Capital assets with a value in excess of $50,000  
are recorded at cost and amortized in accordance with the Financial Administration Manual guidelines by the 
GNWT.  Capital assets with a value of less than $50,000 are recorded as a current expenditure.

(f) Revenue Recognition

Government Transfers:

Revenues are recognized in the period in which the transactions or events occur that gave rise to the revenues.  
All revenues are recorded on an accrual basis, except when the accruals cannot be determined with a 
reasonable degree of certainty or when their estimation is impracticable.

Government transfers are recognized as revenues when the transfer is authorized and any eligibility criteria are 
met, except to the extent that transfer stipulations give rise to an obligation that meets the definition of a liability.  
Transfers are recognized as deferred revenue when transfer stipulations give rise to a liability.  Transfer revenue 
is recognized in the statement of operations as the stipulation liabilities are settled.

Operating transfers are recognized as revenue in the period in which the events giving rise to the transaction 
occur, providing the transfers are authorized, eligibility criteria have been met, and reasonable estimates of the 
amounts can be determined.

Capital transfers or transfers of tangible capital assets are initially recognized as deferred revenue and 
subsequently recognized as revenue when the related tangible capital assets are recognized as acquired or           
built.
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Sahtu Divisional Education Council
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019
 

(f) Revenue Recognition - (Continued)

GNWT – Regular Contributions:

The regular contributions from the GNWT are determined by a funding formula and are received in monthly
installments.  The Education Body retains surpluses and is responsible for deficits.  Any funding requests, 
over and above those levels provided by the formula, must be first approved by the GNWT.

Other Contributions:

The Education Body follows the deferral method of accounting for other contributions. Unrestricted contributions 
are recognized as revenue when they are received or receivable, if the amount can be reasonably estimated    
and its collection is reasonably assured.  Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which 
the related expenses are incurred.

Deferred Revenue:

Deferred revenue consists of funds received in advance of providing the services or acquiring the goods. These 
amounts are taken into revenue when the eligible expenditures are incurred.

Investment Income:

Investment income is recognized when received or receivable, if the amount can be reasonably estimated

(g) Infrastructure Funding

Any personnel, utilities, and leases infrastructure funding net surplus at the end of the fiscal year is recorded as      
a payable to the GNWT.  Net deficits are not shown as receivable from the GNWT since these amounts are not 
repayable.

(h) Budget Data

The Education Ac t of the Northwest Territories requires that Education Bodies prepare an annual budget, as 
outlined in Section 128 and 129.

The priorities and funding allocations are determined by the Board of Trustees of each Education Body and the 
budget is legally adopted by a motion of the Board in accordance with Section 135(3) of the Education Act .

Board approved budgets are submitted to the Minister of Education, Culture and Employment for final approval
as directed by Sections 117(2) k,l and m of the Education Act .

This annual budget includes estimates of revenues, expenditures and the net operating surplus (deficit).  
Budgets are considered a management control and planning tool and as such are incorporated into the
accounting system of the Education Body.

The budget may be amended within a given fiscal year in accordance with Education Body policy, regulations
and approved budget procedures.  The budget data presented in the consolidated financial statements reflects 
the Minister approved budget for the school year.
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Sahtu Divisional Education Council
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019
 

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(i) Measurement Uncertainty

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with Canadian Public Sector              
Accounting Standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported  
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the amounts of revenue and expenses during the period.  Actual results could differ from these             
estimates.

(j) Inventories Including Materials and Supplies

Inventories of books, materials, supplies and other expendables purchased by the Education Body are treated
as expenditures during the year of acquisition and are not recorded on the statement of financial position.

(k) Payroll Liabilities

According to the Northwest Territories Teachers Association (NWTTA) and GNWT Collective Agreement, 
teaching staff have their salary issued by the GNWT bi-weekly pay system.  NWTTA staff will have earned 
their annual salary by June 30th which provides for continued payment during the summer.  GNWT Payroll for 
NWTTA starts with the annualized salary commitment for compensation and then allocates the complete 
payout of that value over the number of pay periods between August 1 and July 31.  Pay periods falling in July 
are therefore accrued.

The duties and compensation base for UNW School Year employees are scheduled to align with the 
academic year although actual start dates and durations vary by specific location and job function. 
Accordingly, the Education Body determines the start dates of their UNW employees and accrues the related
payroll liability as appropriate.

All other staff are accrued to include earnings to June 30.  

(l) Post-employment and Termination Benefits

Under the conditions of employment, employees qualify for annual leave of varying lengths depending on
length of service. Annual leave is payable within one fiscal year. Employees also earn retirement and 
severance remuneration based on the number of years of service. Certain employees will also receive
assistance with removal costs to return to their point of recruitment. Payment of the removal and termination 
is dependent on employees leaving the Education Body and other criteria as outlined in the  negotiated         
collective agreements and management handbook guidelines of the GNWT.
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Sahtu Divisional Education Council
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019
 

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(m) Special Purpose Funds

School activity funds which are fully controlled by the Education Body with respect to when and how the funds 
available can be disbursed are included. The funds reported are internally restricted as to purpose and may 
include the proceeds of fundraising, contributions or fees paid related to a specific planned benefits.

Student activity funds which are controlled by students or parties other than the Education Body are not included 
even if custody of the funds is held by the Education Body.

Note 3. Future Accounting Changes and Adoption of New Accounting Standards

Future Accounting Changes

Revenues - Section PS 3400

PSAB has approved Section PS 3400, Revenues. This Section establishes standards on how to account for and 
report on revenue. This Section applies to fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2022. Earlier adoption is 
permitted. This Section may be applied retroactively or prospectively. Management is currently assessing the 
impact of the standard.

Inter-entity Transactions - Section PS 3420

PSAB approved Section PS 3420, Inter-entity transactions.  This section establishes standards on how to  
account for and report transactions between public sector entities that comprise a government's reporting  
entity from both a provider and recipient perspective. The new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning   
on or after April 1, 2018. Earlier adoption is permitted. Management is currently assessing the impact of the 
standard. 

Financial Instruments - Section PS 3450

PSAB has implemented changes to Section PS 3450, Financial instruments that outlines offsetting of financial
assets and financial liabilities and the valuation of investments to be measured at fair value.  These changes are
to be applied on a go forward basis for all fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2019. Management is  
currently assessing the impact of the standard.

Student Activity/Fiduciary Funds Policy

Student Activity/Fiduciary funds policy is currently under review by the GNWT - ECE for possible inclusion in     
Special Purpose Funds. At this time no formal directive has been released and, therefore management is 
unable to determine any impact that may exist on the financial statements.

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

Effective April 1, 2018, the new standard from the PSA Handbook Section PS 3430 – restructuring transactions
was adopted. There is no significant impact on the consolidated financial statements as a result of adopting the 
new standards.
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Sahtu Divisional Education Council
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Surplus

For the year ended June 30, 2019

Note 4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

2019 2018 

Cash $ 3,260,052      $ 2,610,687     
Short term investments -                 -                

$ 3,260,052 $ 2,610,687

Note 5. Special Purpose Funds 

Special purpose funds consist of account balances held by each of the individual District Education Authorities
for which the Education Body has control of when and how the funds are disbursed. Additionally, the SDEC 
administers funding for the Community Justice Committee.

2019 2018 

Colville Lake $ 8,000 $ 8,000
Deline 69,661 97,801
Fort Good Hope 113,549 67,522
Norman Wells  53,272 108,328
Tulita 64,815 75,069
SDEC (CJC) 49,904 42,560   

$ 359,201 $ 399,280

Note 6. Restricted Assets - Not Applicable

Note 7. Portfolio Investments - Not Applicable

Note 8. Accounts Receivable

Receivables AFDA Net Net
2019 2019 2019 2018 

GNWT - ECE $ 217,525          $ -                  $ 217,525         $ 273,313        
GNWT - HSS 925                 -                  925                30,141          
GNWT - MACA 148,050          -                  148,050         137,852        
GNWT - Justice 30,000            -                  30,000           28,000          
GNWT - ENR -                  -                  -                 -                

Total Due from GNWT 396,500          -                  396,500         469,306        

WSCC -                  -                  -                 -                
Other 982,762          112,664          870,098         110,552        

$ 1,379,262       $ 112,664          $ 1,266,598      $ 579,858        

Note 9. Inventories - Not Applicable
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Sahtu Divisional Education Council
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019
 

Note 10. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

2019 2018 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
GNWT $ 297                $ 35,719          
WSCC -                 -                
Trade payables  202,706         231,573        

203,003         267,292        

Payroll liabilities
To GNWT (A) 931,364         531,562        
To Employees (B) 989,820         910,798        
Annual Leave 86,172           63,714          
Lieu 6,420             11,196          
Other 3,040             -                

2,016,816      1,517,270     

$ 2,219,819      $ 1,784,562     

Note A: Amount outstanding to be paid to GNWT by the education board for salaries and wages
paid by June 30.

Note B: Amount accrued by the education board for salaries and wages to be paid in July and 
August.

Note 11. Deferred Revenue

2019 2018 

MACA
Active After School $ 71,000 $ 66,500
Youth Contribution 37,995 28,977
Regional Youth Sports 39,250 42,375
Encounters 4,000 -   

Justice
Community Justice 49,904 42,560

ITI
Seed -   -   

ECE
Northern Distance Learning 49,915 82,340
Library 107,137 107,128

HSS
Nutrition North -   29,400

Government of Canada
Jordan's Principle 671,795 -   

$ 1,030,996 $ 399,280
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Sahtu Divisional Education Council
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019
 

Note 12. Contribution Repayable - Not Applicable

Note 13. Due From and To the Government of Canada - Not Applicable
 

Note 14. Capital Lease Obligations - Not Applicable

Note 15. Pension - Not Applicable

Note 16. Long-term Debt - Not Applicable

Note 17. Other employee future benefits and compensated absences

The Education Body provides severance (resignation and retirement), removal and compensated absence
(sick, special maternity and parental leave) benefits to its employees. The benefit plans are not pre-funded and 
thus have no assets, resulting in a deficit equal to the accrued post-employment benefits obligation.

Severance benefits are paid to employees based on the types of termination (e.g. resignation versus retirement)
and appropriate combinations that include inputs such as when the employee was hired, the rate of pay, the   
number of years of continuous employment, and age and the benefit is subject to maximum benefit limits. 
Removal benefits are subject to several criteria, the main ones being location of hire, employee category and
length of service. The benefits under these two categories were valued using the Projected Unit Credit            
methodology.

Compensated absence benefits generally accrue as employees render services and are paid upon the 
occurrence of an event resulting in eligibility for benefits under the terms of the plan. Events include, but are not 
limited to employee or dependent illness and death of an immediate family member. Non-accruing benefits          
include maternity and parental leave. Benefits that accrue under the compensated absence benefits were valued     
using the expected utilization methodology.

Valuation results

The actuarial valuation was completed as at March 31, 2017. The effective date of the next actuarial valuation
is March 31, 2020. The liabilities are actuarially determined as the present value of the accrued benefits at 
February 17, 2018 and the results extrapolated to June 30, 2019. The values presented below are for all of the 
benefits under the Compensated Absences and Terminations Benefits for the consolidated Government.
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June 30, 2019
 

Note 17. Other employee future benefits and compensated absences (continued)

 Severance Compensated 
and removal Absences 2019 2018 

Changes in Obligation
Accrued benefit obligations $ 657,890 $ 123,192 $ 781,082 $ 880,345

beginning of the year
Current period benefit cost 52,620 16,425 69,045 70,775
Interest accrued 24,746 4,920 29,666 28,497
Benefits payments (54,702) (39,307) (94,009) (91,300)
Plan amendments -   -   -   -   
Actuarial (gain)/loss 126,021 42,054 168,075 (107,235)

Accrued benefit obligation
end of year 806,575 147,284 953,859 781,082

Unamortized net actuarial gain 431,025 30,371 461,396 739,275

Net future obligation 1,237,600 177,655 1,415,255 1,520,357

Benefits Expense
Current period benefit cost 52,620 16,425 69,045 70,775
Interest accrued 24,746 4,920 29,666 28,497
Plan amendments -   -   -   -   
Amortization of actuarial gains (95,473) (14,331) (109,804) (96,400)

(18,107) 7,014 (11,093) 2,872

The discount rate used to determine the accrued benefit obligation is an average of 3.3%. No inflation rate 
was applied. The expected payments during the next five fiscal years are:

 Severance Compensated 
and removal Absences Total

2020 $ 138,555 $ 21,729 $ 160,284
2021 107,876 18,545 126,421
2022 83,301 15,626 98,927
2023 64,606 13,156 77,762
2024 56,737 11,904 68,641

 $ 451,075  $ 80,960  $ 532,035
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Note 18. Trust Assets and Liabilities under Administration - Not Applicable

Note 19. Tangible Capital Asset - Not Applicable

Note 20. Prepaid Expenses

2019 2018 

Prepaid expenses  $ 46,569           $ 19,360          

Note 21. GNWT Assets Provided at No Cost 

Accumulated 
Cost Amortization 2019 2018 

Buildings
Schools and colleges $ 66,333,683     $ 22,941,121     $ 43,392,562    $ 45,001,718   
Staff Housing 275,800          113,299          162,501         174,843        

$ 66,609,483     $ 23,054,420     $ 43,555,063    $ 45,176,561   

Note 22. Contractual Obligations

The Education Body has entered into agreements for, or is contractually committed to, the following expenses
payable subsequent to June 30, 2019.

Expires in 2021 and
Fiscal Year * 2020 thereafter Total 

Commercial and residential leases 2023 $ 235,483          $ 708,020         $ 943,503        
* Refers to the last fiscal year of all agreements in that line category

The lease on the Council's office expires on August 31, 2023. A 15 year lease agreement was entered into 
at the Edward Hodgson Building with monthly lease payments starting September 1, 2008. From
September 1, 2008 to August 31, 2018 the annual lease payments will remain at $106,752, After 10 years,
the lease amount may be adjusted based on the expected market conditions for the following 5 years.

In addition, the Council is responsible for its proportionate share of utilities and cleaning services received
during its term of occupancy.

Net Book Value
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June 30, 2019
 

Note 23. Contingencies - Not applicable

Note 24. Related Parties and Inter-Entity Transactions

The Education Body is related in terms of common ownership to all GNWT created departments, agencies
and corporations.  The Education Body enters into transactions with these entities in the normal course of 
operations. The Education Body is provided with various administrative services by the GNWT, the value of 
which is not reflected in these financial statements.  The administrative costs include legal services by the 
Department of Justice, insurance coverage by the Department of Finance, payroll services by the Department 
of Human Resources, internal audit services by the Department of Finance, and utility and maintenance by 
Public Works and Services.  Transactions with related parties and balances at year-end not disclosed 
elsewhere in the financial statements are disclosed in this note. There are no related party balances not           
disclosed elsewhere. 

Note 25. Budget

The Education Act of the Northwest Territories requires that Education Bodies prepare an annual budget, as 
outlined in Section 117, Duties and Powers of Education Bodies.  The budget is legally adopted by a motion of 
the Education Body which may or may not include the establishment of a tax levy to support the approved 
budget in accordance with Section 135, Assessment and Taxation, of the Education Act.

The annual budget includes estimates of revenues and expenditures for the Operating Fund. Budgets are
considered a management control and planning tool and as such are incorporated into the accounting system 
of the Education Body.

The budget figures presented are those approved by the Minister of education, Culture and Employment
on June 5, 2018 and have not been audited.

Note 26. Economic Dependence

The Sahtu District Education Council received its funding primarily from the GNWT. If the funding arrangements    
were to change management is of the opinion that Sahtu District Education Council operations would be
significantly affected.

Note 27. Financial Instruments

The Education Body is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments and has a comprehensive risk 
management framework to monitor, evaluate and manage these risks.  The following analysis provides 
information about the Education Body's risk exposure and concentration as of June 30, 2019.

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations.  The Education Body
has little exposure to credit risk as the majority of  its revenues originate from government sources with
strong credit worthiness.
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Note 27. Financial Instruments (continued)

Liquidity
Liquidity risk is the risk the Education Body will not be able to meet its obligations as they come due.  The
Education Body manages its liquidity requirements by preparing detailed cash budgets and having cash     
available on hand to meet its obligations.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices.  Market risk is composed of currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk.

Currency risk

The Education Body deals exclusively in Canadian funds and therefore has no currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affected by a change
in interest rates.  The Education Body minimizes risk through its normal operating and financing activities and
maintains cash in a general bank account.

Note 28. Expenses by Object

2019 2019 2018
Budget Actual Actual 

Salaries $ 12,250,270 $ 12,313,567 $ 12,250,037
Employee Benefits 548,000 443,906 409,895
Services Purchased/Contracted 1,302,824 1,523,030 1,633,454
Materials, Supplies and Freight 417,200 1,002,741 851,612
Debt Services -   -   -      

$ 14,518,294 $ 15,283,244 $ 15,144,998

Note 29. Subsequent Events - Not Applicable

Note 30. Comparative Figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year's presentation.

Note 31. Other ECE Revenue

2019 2018 

Library $ 140,000         $ 140,000        
Health and wellness 11,660           -                
Youth with disabilities 12,500           -                
Self regulation 7,000             4,000            
Distance learning 60,670           73,185          
LMAPD -                 24,000          
Less: Deferred revenue & contributions repaid (93,403)          (188,108)      

$ 138,427         $ 53,077          
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Note 32. GNWT - Other Contributions

2019 2018 

MACA
Active After School $ 98,950           $ 66,500          
Youth Contribution 17,450           56,670          
Regional Youth Sports 39,250           49,075          
On the land 7,200             4,442            
Youth Corps Rainbow United GSA 38,050           -                
Keepers of the land 22,500           -                
Kelly lake 5,000             -                
Model Rocket 1,135             -                
TAKT 19,450           -                
Volunteer -                 2,000            
Puppeteer -                 5,000            
Youth Heritage -                 4,227            

HSS
Drop The Pop 8,850             8,500            
Nutrition North -                 28,000          

ITI
Growing Resistance: Northern Agriculture Program 48,050           -                

Justice
Community Justice 56,000           56,000          

Other
On the land -                 26,000          

Less: Deferred revenue & contributions repaid (12,039)          71,161          

$ 349,846         $ 377,575        

Note 33. Contingent Assets - Not Applicable

Note 34. Contractual Rights - Not Applicable

Note 35. Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses - Not Applicable
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Sahtu Divisional Education Council
Schedule A-1 - Statement of Council Operations and Financial Position (Non-Consolidated)

For the year ended June 30, 2019

2019 2019 2018
Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
Government of the Northwest Territories $ 14,464,597   $ 15,166,583   $ 15,110,300   
Other education body generated funds 42,000          276,440        202,397        

14,506,597   15,443,023   15,312,697   
  

Expenditure 
Administration 962,853        1,012,430     960,194        
School programs 9,476,933     9,681,725     9,904,708     
Inclusive schooling 2,517,234     2,521,949     2,053,991     
Operations and maintenance 148,952        139,973        140,359        
Aboriginal languages 1,412,322     1,355,828     1,539,021     

14,518,294   14,711,905   14,598,273   

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue over Expenditure $ (11,697)        $ 731,118        $ 714,424        

Accumulated surplus (deficit), beginning of year 3,067,655     2,353,231     

Accumulated surplus (deficit), end of year $ 3,798,773     $ 3,067,655     
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SATHU DIVISIONAL EDUCATION COUNCIL
Schedule A-2 - Details of Council Expenses (Non-Consolidated)

For the year ended June 30, 2019

School Inclusive Operations & Council Aboriginal Fiscal & 2019
Function Programs Schooling Accommodation Maintenance Administration Languages Transfers Total

Salaries
Teachers' salaries $ 6,840,834 $ 1,128,547 $ -   $ -   $ -   $ 1,181,103 $ -   $ 9,150,484
Instruction Assistant 6,562 873,987 -   -   -   57,366 -   937,915
Non Instructional Staff 1,028,908 264,700 -   -   688,746 -   -   1,982,354
Board/Trustee Honoraria -    -   -   -   21,712 40,861 -   62,573

7,876,304 2,267,234 -   -   710,458 1,279,330 -   12,133,326

Employee Benefits
Employee benefits and allowances 7,298 -   -   -   -   -   -   7,298
Leave and termination benefits 436,608 -   -   -   -   -   -   436,608

443,906 -   -    -    -   -    -   443,906

Services Purchased/Contracted
Professional/Technical Services 519,224 22,089 -   -   -   -   -   541,313
Postage/Communication 40,167 -   -   -   34,882 -   -   75,049
Utilities -   

Heating -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
Electricity -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
Water/Sewage -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Travel 117,653 74,775 -   -   64,363 21,103 -   277,894
Student Travel (busing) 150,536 -   -   -   -   -   -   150,536
Advertising/Printing/Publishing 629 -   -   -   -   -   -   629
Maintenance/Repair 36,548 -   -   4,200 -   -   -   40,748
Rentals/Leases -   -   -   135,773 -   -   -   135,773
Other - Contracted Services 41,960 -   -   -   50,456 28,613 -   121,029
Other - Miscellaneous 27,141 12,099 -   -   23,166 -   -   62,406

933,858 108,963  -    139,973  172,867 49,716  -   1,405,377

Materials, Supplies and Freight
Materials 394,763 142,476 -   -   127,414 26,444 -   691,097
Freight 32,894 3,276 -   -   1,691 338 -   38,199

427,657 145,752 -    -    129,105 26,782  -   729,296

Contributions and Transfers
Transfers to DEAs -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
Transfers to Capital -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Amortization -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Debt Services -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
Total $ 9,681,725 $ 2,521,949 $ -   $ 139,973 $ 1,012,430 $ 1,355,828 $ -   $ 14,711,905

Student   
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SAHTU DIVISIONAL EDUCATION COUNCIL
Schedule B-1 District Education Authorities
Statement of Operations - Non-Consolidated

For the year ended June 30, 2019

2019 2019 2018
Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
Contributions from Divisional Council $ 109,000      126,000     126,000     

GNWT -                  715,756     617,739     
Other -                  -                 -                 
Deferred Revenue -                  (262,867)    (120,164)    
Contributions Repaid (10,851)       (46,430)      (47,964)      

(10,851)       406,459     449,611     

Total revenue 98,149        532,459     575,611     
  

Expenditure 
Administration 57,500        164,880     97,114       
School programs 61,109        406,459     426,415     
Inclusive schooling -                  -                 -                 
Student accommodations -                  -                 -                 
Operations and maintenance -                  -                 -                 
Aboriginal language/cultural programs -                  -                 23,196       

$ 118,609      571,339     546,725     

Surplus (Deficit) (20,460)       (38,880)      28,886       

Opening equity 79,450       50,564
Closing equity $ 40,570       $ 79,450       

Composition of Ending Accumulated Surplus
Cash $ -                 $ -                 
Accounts receivable 40,570       79,450       
Accounts payable -                 -                 

$ 40,570       $ 79,450       
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SAHTU DIVISIONAL EDUCATION COUNCIL
Schedule B-2 - Details of DEA Expenses 
Non-Consolidated
For the year ended June 30, 2019
 

School Inclusive Student Operations and Council Aboriginal
Function Programs Schooling Accom. Maintenance Administration Languages Total

Salaries
Teachers' Salaries $ -                        $ -                   $ -                   $ -                        $ -                        $ -                   $ -                    
Instruction Assistant -                        -                   -                   -                        -                        -                   -                    
Non-instructional Staff 112,676             -                   -                   -                        44,872              -                   157,548        
Board/Trustee Honorarium -                        -                   -                   -                        22,693              -                   22,693          

112,676            -                   -                   -                        67,565              -                   180,241        

Employee Benefits
Employee Benefits and Allowances -                        -                   -                   -                        -                        -                   -                    
Leave and Termination -                        -                   -                   -                        -                        -                   -                    

-                        -  -                   -                   -                        -                        -                   -                    

Services Purchased/Contracted
Professional/Technical Services -                        -                   -                   -                        -                        -                   -                    
Postage/Communication -                        -                   -                   -                        -                        -                   -                    
Utilities

Heating -                        -                   -                   -                        -                        -                   -                    
Electricity -                        -                   -                   -                        -                        -                   -                    
Water/Sewage -                        -                   -                   -                        -                        -                   -                    

Travel 23,004              -                   -                   -                        -                        -                   23,004          
Student Transportation (busing) -                        -                   -                   -                        -                        -                   -                    
Advertising/Printing/Publishing -                        -                   -                   -                        -                        -                   -                    
Maintenance/Repair -                        -                   -                   -                        -                        -                   -                    
Rentals/Leases -                        -                   -                   -                        -                        -                   -                    
Other -  Fees -                        -                   -                   -                        -                        -                   -                    
Other - Special Requests -                        -                   -                   -                        94,649              -                   94,649                             

23,004              -                    -                   -                        94,649              -                   117,653        

Materials/Supplies/Freight
Materials 262,316            -                   -                   -                        2,666                -                   264,982        
Freight 8,463                -                   -                   -                        -                        -                   8,463            

270,779            -                   -                   -                        2,666                -                   273,445        
Total $ 406,459            $ -                   $ -                   $ -                        $ 164,880            $ -                   571,339        
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COLVILE LAKE

District Education Authority
Statement of Operations

For the year ended June 30, 2019

2019 2019 2018
Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
Contributions from Divisional Council $ -                  $ 17,000        $ 17,000        
GNWT -                  29,261        18,125        
Other -                  -                  -                  
Deferred Revenue 12,671        (7,634)         15,700        
Contributions Repaid (12,671)       (366)            (11,956)       

-                  38,261        38,869        
  

Expenses
Administration -                  27,077        13,638        
School programs -                  21,261        21,869        
Inclusive schooling -                  -                  -                  
School accommodations -                  -                  -                  
Operations and maintenance -                  -                  -                  
Aboriginal language/cultural programs -                  -                  -                  

-                  48,338        35,507        

Surplus (Deficit) -                  (10,077)       3,362          

Opening equity 22,748        19,386        

Closing equity $ 12,671        $ 22,748        
Composition of Closing Equity

Cash $ -                  $ -                  
Accounts Receivable 12,671        22,748        
Accounts Payable -                  -                  

$ 12,671        $ 22,748        
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COLVILLE LAKE

District Education Authority
Details of Expenses

For the year ended June 30, 2019

School Inclusive Student Operations & Aboriginal
Function Programs Schooling Accommodation Maintenance Administration Languages Total

Salaries
Teachers' Salaries $ -                      $ -                   $ -                      $ -                     $ -                       $ -                   $ -                     
Instruction Assistant -                      -                   -                      -                     -                       -                   -                     
Non Instructional Staff -                      -                   -                      -                     -                       -                   -                     
Board/Trustee Honoraria -                      -                   -                      -                     5,704               -                   5,704             

-                      -                   -                      -                     5,704               -                   5,704             

Employee Benefits
Employee Benefits/Allowances -                      -                   -                      -                     -                       -                   -                     
Leave and Termination Benefits -                      -                   -                      -                     -                       -                   -                     

-                      -                   -                      -                      -                       -                   -                     

Services Purchased/Contracted
Professional/Technical Services -                      -                   -                      -                     -                       -                   -                     
Postage/Communication -                      -                   -                      -                     -                       -                   -                     
Utilities -                      -                   -                      -                     -                       -                   -                     
Travel -                      -                   -                      -                     -                       -                   -                     
Student Transportation -                      -                   -                      -                     -                       -                   -                     
Advertising/Printing/Publishing -                      -                   -                      -                     -                       -                   -                     
Maintenance/Repair -                      -                   -                      -                     -                       -                   -                     
Rentals/Leases -                      -                   -                      -                     -                       -                   -                     
Other - Contracted Services -                      -                   -                      -                     -                       -                   -                     
Other - Special Requests -                      -                   -                      -                     21,373             -                   21,373                              

-                      -                    -                      -                      21,373             -                   21,373           

Materials/Supplies/Freight
Materials 19,392            -                   -                      -                     -                       -                   19,392           
Freight 1,869              -                   -                      -                     -                       -                   1,869             

21,261            -                   -                      -                      -                       -                   21,261           

Total $ 21,261            $ -                   $ -                      $ -                     $ 27,077             $ -                   $ 48,338           
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DELINE

District Education Authority
Statement of Operations

For the year ended June 30, 2019

2019 2019 2018
Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
Contributions from Divisional Council $ 26,000        $ 26,000        $ 26,000        
GNWT -                  143,610      118,769      
Other -                  -                  -                  
Deferred Revenue 4,717          (69,528)       (42,254)       
Contributions Repaid -                  (134)            (13,760)       

30,717        99,948        88,755        
  

Expenses
Administration 18,000        30,995        18,229        
School programs 17,609        73,949        55,929        
Inclusive schooling -                  -                  -                  
School accommodations -                  -                  -                  
Operations and maintenance -                  -                  -                  
Aboriginal language/cultural programs -                  -                  6,826          

35,609        104,944      80,984        

Surplus (Deficit) (4,892)         (4,996)         7,771          

Opening equity 9,713          1,942          

Closing equity $ 4,717          $ 9,713          

Composition of Closing Equity
Cash $ -                  $ -                  
Accounts Receivable 4,717          9,713          
Accounts Payable -                  -                  

$ 4,717          $ 9,713          
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DELINE

District Education Authority
Details of Expenses

For the year ended June 30, 2019

School Inclusive Student Operations & Aboriginal
Function Programs Schooling Accommodation Maintenance Administration Languages Total

Salaries
Teachers' Salaries $ -                     $ -                  $ -                     $ -                    $ -                      $ -                   $ -                    
Instruction Assistant -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Non Instructional Staff 26,095           -                  -                     -                    10,994            -                   37,089          
Board/Trustee Honoraria -                     -                  -                     -                    5,069              -                   5,069            

26,095           -                  -                     -                    16,063            -                   42,158          

Employee Benefits
Employee Benefits/Allowances -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Leave and Termination Benefits -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    

-                     -                  -                     -                     -                      -                   -                    

Services Purchased/Contracted
Professional/Technical Services -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Postage/Communication -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Utilities -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Travel -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Student Transportation -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Advertising/Printing/Publishing -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Maintenance/Repair -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Rentals/Leases -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Other - Contracted Services -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Other - Special Requests -                     -                  -                     -                    12,266            -                   12,266                             

-                     -                   -                     -                     12,266            -                   12,266          

Materials/Supplies/Freight
Materials 44,713           -                  -                     -                    2,666              -                   47,379          
Freight 3,141             -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   3,141            

47,854           -                  -                     -                     2,666              -                   50,520          

Total $ 73,949           $ -                  $ -                     $ -                    $ 30,995            $ -                   $ 104,944        
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FORT GOOD HOPE

District Education Authority
Statement of Operations

For the year ended June 30, 2019

2019 2019 2018
Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
Contributions from Divisional Council $ 26,000        $ 26,000        $ 26,000        
GNWT -                  259,211      193,628      
Other -                  -                  -                  
Deferred Revenue 8,663          (94,757)       (5,562)         
Contributions Repaid (8,863)         (18,791)       (1,055)         

25,800        171,663      213,011      

Expenses
Administration 13,000        25,793        24,196        
School programs 13,000        145,663      179,011      
Inclusive schooling -                  -                  -                  
School accommodations -                  -                  -                  
Operations and maintenance -                  -                  -                  
Aboriginal language/cultural programs -                  -                  8,000          

26,000        171,456      211,207      

Surplus (Deficit) (200)            207             1,804          

Opening equity 8,663          6,859          

Closing equity $ 8,870          $ 8,663          

Composition of Closing Equity
Cash $ -                  $ -                  
Accounts Receivable 8,870          8,663          
Accounts Payable -                  -                  

$ 8,870          $ 8,663          
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FORT GOOD HOPE

District Education Authority
Details of Expenses

For the year ended June 30, 2019

School Inclusive Student Operations & Aboriginal
Function Programs Schooling Accommodation Maintenance Administration Languages Total

Salaries
Teachers' Salaries $ -                     $ -                  $ -                     $ -                    $ -                      $ -                   $ -                    
Instruction Assistant -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Non Instructional Staff 40,204           -                  -                     -                    11,630            -                   51,834          
Board/Trustee Honoraria -                     -                  -                     -                    7,673              -                   7,673            

40,204           -                  -                     -                    19,303            -                   59,507          

Employee Benefits
Employee Benefits/Allowances -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Leave and Termination Benefits -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    

-                     -                  -                     -                     -                      -                   -                    

Services Purchased/Contracted
Professional/Technical Services -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Postage/Communication -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Utilities -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Travel 21,690           -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   21,690          
Student Transportation -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Advertising/Printing/Publishing -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Maintenance/Repair -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Rentals/Leases -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Other - Contracted Services -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Other - Special Requests -                     -                  -                     -                    6,490              -                   6,490                               

21,690           -                   -                     -                     6,490              -                   28,180          

Materials/Supplies/Freight
Materials 80,528           -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   80,528          
Freight 3,241             -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   3,241            

83,769           -                  -                     -                     -                      -                   83,769          

Total $ 145,663          $ -                  $ -                     $ -                    $ 25,793            $ -                   $ 171,456        
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NORMAN WELLS

District Education Authority
Statement of Operations

For the year ended June 30, 2019

2019 2019 2018
Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
Contributions from Divisional Council $ 30,000        $ 30,000        $ 30,000        
GNWT -                  180,048      165,342      
Other -                  -                  -                  
Deferred Revenue 4,076          (52,029)       (50,324)       
Contributions Repaid (4,076)         (1,243)         474             

30,000        156,776      145,492      
  

Expenses
Administration 11,500        39,921        18,727        
School programs 18,500        126,776      115,492      
Inclusive schooling -                  -                  -                  
School accommodations -                  -                  -                  
Operations and maintenance -                  -                  -                  
Aboriginal language/cultural programs -                  -                  -                  

30,000        166,697      134,219      

Surplus (Deficit) -                  (9,921)         11,273        

Opening equity 13,997        2,724          

Closing equity $ 4,076          $ 13,997        

Composition of Closing Equity
Cash $ -                  $ -                  
Accounts Receivable 4,076          13,997        
Accounts Payable -                  -                  

$ 4,076          $ 13,997        
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NORMAN WELLS

District Education Authority
Details of Expenses

For the year ended June 30, 2019

School Inclusive Student Operations & Aboriginal
Function Programs Schooling Accommodation Maintenance Administration Languages Total

Salaries
Teachers' Salaries $ -                     $ -                  $ -                     $ -                    $ -                      $ -                   $ -                    
Instruction Assistant -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Non Instructional Staff 30,799           -                  -                     -                    10,978            -                   41,777          
Board/Trustee Honoraria -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    

30,799           -                  -                     -                    10,978            -                   41,777          

Employee Benefits
Employee Benefits/Allowances -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Leave and Termination Benefits -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    

-                     -                  -                     -                     -                      -                   -                    

Services Purchased/Contracted
Professional/Technical Services -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Postage/Communication -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Utilities -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Travel 1,314             -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   1,314            
Student Transportation -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Advertising/Printing/Publishing -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Maintenance/Repair -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Rentals/Leases -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Other - Contracted Services -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Other - Special Requests -                     -                  -                     -                    28,943            -                   28,943                             

1,314             -                   -                     -                     28,943            -                   30,257          

Materials/Supplies/Freight
Materials 94,663           -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   94,663          
Freight -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    

94,663           -                  -                     -                     -                      -                   94,663          

Total $ 126,776          $ -                  $ -                     $ -                    $ 39,921            $ -                   $ 166,697        
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TULITA

District Education Authority
Statement of Operations

For the year ended June 30, 2019

2019 2019 2018
Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
Contributions from Divisional Council $ 27,000        $ 27,000        $ 27,000        
GNWT -                  103,626      121,875      
Other -                  -                  -                  
Deferred Revenue 23,452        (38,919)       (37,724)       
Contribution Repayable (23,452)       (25,896)       (21,667)       

27,000        65,811        89,484        
  

Expenses
Administration 15,000        41,094        22,324        
School programs 12,000        38,810        54,114        
Inclusive schooling -                  -                  -                  
School accommodations -                  -                  -                  
Operations and maintenance -                  -                  -                  
Aboriginal language/cultural programs -                  -                  8,370          

27,000        79,904        84,808        

Surplus (Deficit) -                  (14,093)       4,676          

Opening equity 24,329        19,653        

Closing equity $ 10,236        $ 24,329        

Composition of Closing Equity
Cash $ -                  $ -                  
Accounts Receivable 10,236        24,329        
Accounts Payable -                  -                  

$ 10,236        $ 24,329        
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TULITA

District Education Authority
Details of Expenses

For the year ended June 30, 2019

School Inclusive Student Operations & Aboriginal
Function Programs Schooling Accommodation Maintenance Administration Languages Total

Salaries
Teachers' Salaries $ -                     $ -                  $ -                     $ -                    $ -                      $ -                   $ -                    
Instruction Assistant -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Non Instructional Staff 15,578           -                  -                     -                    11,270            -                   26,848          
Board/Trustee Honoraria -                     -                  -                     -                    4,247              -                   4,247            

15,578           -                  -                     -                    15,517            -                   31,095          

Employee Benefits
Employee Benefits/Allowances -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Leave and Termination Benefits -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    

-                     -                  -                     -                     -                      -                   -                    

Services Purchased/Contracted
Professional/Technical Services -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Postage/Communication -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Utilities -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Travel -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Student Transportation -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Advertising/Printing/Publishing -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Maintenance/Repair -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Rentals/Leases -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Other - Contracted Services -                     -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   -                    
Other - Special Requests -                     -                  -                     -                    25,577            -                   25,577                             

-                     -                   -                     -                     25,577            -                   25,577          

Materials/Supplies/Freight
Materials 23,020           -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   23,020          
Freight 212                -                  -                     -                    -                      -                   212               

23,232           -                  -                     -                     -                      -                   23,232          

Total $ 38,810           $ -                  $ -                     $ -                    $ 41,094            $ -                   $ 79,904          
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Management Discussion and Analysis 

Introduction 

Hay River Health and Social Services Authority (HRHSSA) have a mandate to provide publicly 
funded health and social services under the Hospital Insurance and Health and Social Services 
Administration Act.  Services are provided to the residents of the Town of Hay River, Hay River 
Reserve, Enterprise, Kakisa, Fort Providence and Fort Resolution.  It is the responsibility of the 
HRHSSA Public Administrator and Management to promote transparency and accountability.  
The preparation of the Management Discussion and Analysis is a go-forward method of 
acknowledging this responsibility. 
 
Our mission is “to provide equitable care and service and encourage individuals, families and 
communities to make healthy choices” and our values are: 

 Caring - with integrity, we treat everyone with compassion, respect, equity, dignity and 
we value diversity. 

 Accountable - we are responsible to utilize our resources efficiently and effectively and 
report the impact of our work to the community. 

 Relationships - we work in collaboration with all residents including individuals, families, 
communities, staff, other health authorities, and Indigenous Governments. 

 Excellence - we pursue continuous quality improvement through innovation, 
integration and evidence based practice. 

 Safety - we place safety at the center of all of our decisions. 
 

 
Although HRHSSA has remained a separate Health and Social Services Authority, we continue 
to work in collaboration with the Department of Health and Social Services, Tlicho Community 
Services Agency and the Northwest Territories Health and Social Services Authority.  System 
transformation has provided an opportunity for improved access to services and quality of care. 
The Management and staff have continued to strive to provide the best health and best care to 
all of our clients.  
  
Brain Willows is our Public Administrator and Erin Griffiths, our CEO, leads the Management 
Team.  Members of the Senior Leadership Team are Dale Snow, Director of Client Care 
Services, Carol Heron-Colosimo, Director, Social Programs, Andrew Laming, Director of 
Finance and Administration, Jennifer Croucher, Manager, Human Resources, Bonnie Kimble, 
Manager of Quality and Risk.  
 
The last four years has shown a decline in the annual deficit due to an increase in the net value 
of the pension plan asset.  The financial statements present an accumulated surplus of 
$11,214,039.  Including in the deficit is a $500,000 cash reserve.  If we remove the pension plan 
asset and cash reserve from the effects of the accumulated surplus, there is a resulting adjusted 
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accumulated deficit of $5,568,961. This adjusted deficit is due to a non-cash transaction that is 
based on the requirement to account for the pension liability on a going concern basis.  At year 
end the market value of the pension fund assets were $16,783,000 higher than the pension 
obligation. 
 
Support services include Human Resources, Finance, Information Services, Material 
Management, Housekeeping, Laundry services, Engineering services, Dietary, Registration, 
Medical Records and Electronic Medical Records. The cost of providing basic services continue 
to grow, however, Management and Staff continuously strive to reduce operating expenditures.   
Support services costs continue to rise as we face the challenge of recruitment of staff.   
Ambulatory care costs fluctuate based on the number of locum Physicians that are recruited each 
year. 

Financial Highlights 

The Authority had $34.5M in revenues for the year of which 95% of the funds received were 
obtained from the GNWT, which is consistent with prior years. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

$32,743,712 

$829,233 

$833,087 
$77,593 

2020 Reveneus

Contributions from GNWT Recoveries Sales ‐ Patient Revenues Other Income
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The following 2 charts show the breakdowns of expense by department and by type of expense. 
Expenses by department show that the largest spending in the Authority exists within the 
Administration and Support Services, Community Social Programs and Nursing Inpatient 
Services. 

 

 

Wages account for 80% of total spending up slightly over prior years due to the collective 
agreement. Other costs include items such as supplies, referred out services, purchased services 
personnel, rent, equipment maintenance and other costs associated with the operation of the 
Authority. 

 

$8,565,636 

$4,675,923 

$4,877,923 
$2,954,722 

$2,178,429 

$9,843,619 

2020 Expense by Department

Administrative and Support Services Nursing Inpatients Services

Ambulatory Care Services Diagnostic and Therapeutic Services

Community Health Programs Community Social Programs

$26,494,885 

$1,831,776 

$1,156,189 

$484,831 
$3,128,571 

2020 Expenses by Type

Compensation Locums Medical supplies Referred out services Other
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This next group of charts show the current year, prior year and budget numbers for comparative 
purposes. 

Revenues allocations from year to year and current year to budget are consistent with 
expectations and no significant variances exist with the exception of the contributions from the 
GNWT to help fund pension special payments as well as the collective agreement. 

 

 

In comparing the current year expenses by department to budget, administration costs are higher 
than budgeted as they include the pension special payments of $770,000.  The variance in 
Nursing Inpatient Services from budget is due to vacant positions held in the year. Compared to 
the prior year values, Nursing Inpatient Services has been affected by vacant positions. 
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In comparing expenses by type, there variances in salaries for positions that were budgeted for, 
but not filled due to lack of qualified applicants and funding constraints. Other identifiable variance 
is from funding provided by GNWT towards the special pension payments.  
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Operating Environment  

HRHSSA’s strength has always been a dedicated and long standing staff in front-line and 
Manager/Supervisory roles that are dedicated to providing quality care to clients.  Management 
and staff are conscious of our deficit and make decisions that save money and time.  

During the year there were 7,643 patients seen in the medical clinic and 6,753 emergency visits. 

We continue to adapt to our new facility and based on the feedback and suggestions from our 
staff, clients and visiting practitioners, over the past year we have made some changes to our 
workflow to better utilize our resources to meet the needs of our community. We relocated our 
Emergency Room to be closer to Community Support Beds so that during critical situations, our 
Acute Care staff would be readily available to support one another and the client in need. We also 
began running an Outpatient clinic through Ambulatory Care during regular business hours so 
that our less urgent clients could be seen in a timely manner which in turn reduced the demand 
on our Emergency Department and our limited Medical Clinic appointments. These changes 
enabled our Emergency Department to focus on critically ill clients and our Medical Clinic to better 
utilize the available appointments with our practitioners.   

Child and Family Services continues to working along side the NTHSSA to implement new 
Standards of practice in Child and Family Services.  The system is maintaining quarterly quality 
reviews of child protection services aimed to improve services provided to children and families.  
Statistics in Child and Family Services in HRHSSA report positive results.    
Funding was approved in 2019 to hire (one) additional Child Protection Worker and we have 
successfully recruited for the position.   As of June, 2020, funding has been approved to hire (one) 
Family Preservation Worker.  With a staff compliment of (five) Child Protection Workers and (one) 
preservation worker services to families will be positively enhanced.   
 

The Community Counseling Program has seen significant change in the past 1 ½ years.  The 
team has gone from a staff compliment of 50% in 2019 to working at full staff compliment as of 
2020.  With the gradual introduction of the STEP Care Counselling Model, this team has gone 
from a 29 week waitlist in April, 2019 to a 0 – 48 hr. wait time to see a counsellor by April, 2020. 
The STEP Care model, will see a shift in how services will be provided to the Community. There 
will also be greater opportunities to collaborate with other local organizations to enhance Mental 
Health Services in Hay River.   
 
The Health Family Program has been involved in the Healthy Family Renewal project.  The goal 
of the Renewal project is to have a more system approach to offering services to the families we 
work with.  Some recommended principles intended to guide the program design include;  
More engagement of families, a stronger focus on culture and language, making the program 
accessible and inclusive of not only parents and children, but also extended family caregivers. 
The project intends to focus on strengthening our partnerships with other local level organizations 
that proved resources and supports for families in Hay River. 
The Healthy Family Program team is very excited to have been chosen as one of the sites who 
will be piloting the new programming.   
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Financial Conditions 

The financial health of the Authority is in critical condition as the deficit continues to grow and the 
cash flow continues to decline.  The accumulated adjusted deficit can mainly be attributed to 
staffing costs, which include wages, compensation and locum fees, and account for just over 81% 
of our spending. Relocation, responsibility pay, maternity/paternity, severance, overtime and 
standby costs are not included in the core funding.  These unfunded items of the collective 
agreement totalled over $1,5M. Further there are non-budget items such as pandemic costs of 
$145,000 plus sick, special, education and discretionary totalling in excess of $1,2M, 

With cash of $602,391 and current liabilities of $3,465,450 it is evident that the liquidity of the 
Authority is a concern.  There is always a constant struggle in the last quarter to ensure bills are 
paid and payroll is met.  In addition to the above mentioned liabilities, there are disputed 
contributions repayable to the GNWT in the amount of $1,184,362, which have not been repaid 
due to cash flow.    

The financial statements identify a surplus from operations in the year of $1,387,373. However, 
this amount includes both the pension plan and the employee leave and termination benefits. 
Once these unfunded amounts are backed out of the surplus, the result is a deficit of $179,461.  
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Summary and Outlook 
 
The 2019-2020 fiscal year represented our efforts to strengthen and establish new relationships 
internally with our colleagues, and externally with our local and Territorial partners.  In developing 
these relationships, the HRHSSA Senior Leadership Team is keenly aware of the importance of 
open and effective communication practices across the organization and to the public.  HRHSSS 
leadership has a communication strategy to assist in the continuous improvement of 
communication to all staff and the public. 
 
Organizational wide improvements continue to be identified and reviewed to ensure HRHSSA 
delivers quality programs and services that are consistent with our Territorial partners.  
HRHSSA recognizes that providing culturally appropriate care is necessary to improve better 
health outcomes.  HRHSSA is working in collaboration with our Territorial partners to address 
improved access to primary health care that can become more culturally safe and will decrease 
current demand. 
 
Recruitment of health and social services professionals is challenging across Canada and 
HRHSSA will continue to work with both our local and Territorial partners to enhance our 
recruitment efforts to attract and retain qualified professionals. 
 
In alignment with our three year Strategic Plan, our focus will move HRHSSA towards a system 
which will allow us to provide quality care and service while improving access,  client experience 
and build an organizational structure that is supportive and collaborative.   Our future is bright, 
and we look forward to engaging our workforce and our community to develop culturally safe and 
efficient care and services. 
 
 
Erin Griffiths  
Chief Executive Officer 
 
July 2, 2020 
  
 





To the Minister of Health and Social Services and 
the Chief Executive Officer:

Unqualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hay River Health and Social Services Authority (the Authority)
which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2020, the statements of operations, changes 
in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of  
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Hay River
Health and Social Services Authority as at March 31, 2020 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. Furthermore, in our
opinion, these statements present fairly, in all material respects, the revenues and expenditures of all programs 
funded through contribution agreements with the Department of Health and Social Services which total $250,000 
or more in Schedule A and A-1 for the year ended March 31, 2020, in accordance with the provisions established 
by the individual contribution agreements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with those requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether                  
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Authority's ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Authority or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Authority's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Suite 8 – 6 Courtoreille Street
Hay River, NT     X0E 1G2
PH:  (867) 874-6775
FX:  (867) 874-3775
Email:  tashton@ashtonca.com
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Hay River Health & Social Services Authority (continued)

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Authority
to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit.

ASHTON
Chartered Professional Accountants

Hay River, NT 
July 2 2020
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HAY RIVER HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY
Statement of Operations Statement II

For the year ended March 31, 2020

2020 2020 2019
Budget Actual Actual

Revenue   
Contributions from GNWT, Schedule A $ 31,124,928 $ 32,743,712 $ 31,540,581
Recoveries 519,720 829,233 880,545
Sales - Patient Revenues 885,408 833,087 825,923
Contributions from Other Sources  -   -   -   
Other Income -   -   2,559
Interest 60,000 77,593 65,145
Total Revenue  32,590,056 34,483,625 33,314,753

Expenses
Administrative and Support Services 8,059,536 9,546,636 9,045,585
Nursing Inpatients Services 5,194,692 4,675,923 4,883,897
Ambulatory Care Services 5,299,152 4,877,923 5,349,141
Diagnostic and Therapeutic Services 2,786,520 2,954,722 2,680,434
Community Health Programs 2,022,672 2,178,429 2,189,701
Community Social Programs 9,253,938 9,843,619 8,363,931
Supplementary Health Programs -   -   -   
Undistributed 770,004  (981,000) (1,719,709)

 Total Expenses, Note 24 33,386,514 33,096,252 30,792,980

Operating Surplus (Deficit) (796,458) 1,387,373 2,521,773

Unfunded items
(Increase) Decrease in post-employment benefits, Note 12 -   (1,656,000) (2,663,000)
(Increase) Decrease in employee future benefits and  

 compensated absences, Note 13 -   89,166 79,632
Adjusted operating surplus (deficit) before the undernoted (796,458) (179,461) (61,595)

Tangible Capital Assets - Rent Expense, Note 15 -   (2,119,933) (2,027,428)
Grant-In-Kind - GNWT assets provided at no cost, Note 15 -   2,119,933 2,027,428
Adjusted operating surplus (deficit) for the year $ (796,458) $ (179,461) $ (61,595)

Opening Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) $ 9,826,666 $ 7,304,893

Prior year restricted physician funds allocated -   -   

Operating Surplus (Deficit) 1,387,373 2,521,773

Closing Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) $ 11,214,039 $ 9,826,666
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HAY RIVER HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY
Statement of Changes in Net Financial Resources Statement III

For the year ended March 31, 2020

2020 2019

Annual surplus (deficit) $ 1,387,373 $ 2,521,773

Adjustments
(Increase) Decrease in inventory 11,801 (13,246)
(Increase) Decrease in prepaids and deposits (7,938) 71,552

Increase (Decrease) in net financial assets 1,391,236 2,580,079

Net financial resources, beginning of year 9,408,844 6,828,765
Net financial resources, end of year $ 10,800,080 $ 9,408,844
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HAY RIVER HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Flow Statement IV

For the year ended March 31, 2020

2020 2019

Operating Activities
Annual surplus (deficit) $ 1,387,373 $ 2,521,773

Items not affecting cash:
(Increase) Decrease in pensions, Note 12 (1,656,000) (2,663,000)

(268,627) (141,227)

Changes in non-cash assets and liabilities
Decrease (Increase) in due to/from the Government of Canada 50,023 (53,526)
Decrease (Increase) in accounts receivable 203,517 (773,438)
Decrease (Increase) in inventory 11,801 (13,246)
Decrease (Increase) in prepaids (7,938) 71,552
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable and payroll liabilities 331,447 245,376
Increase (Decrease) in contributions repayable (21,584) 249,399
Increase (Decrease) in employee future benefits (89,166) 79,632
Increase (Decrease) in capital advances -   -   
Increase (Decrease) in deferred revenues -   (741,000)
Increase (Decrease) in trust liability (10,432) 8,639

467,668 (926,612)

Cash from operations 199,041 (1,067,839)

Financing Activities
-   -   

Investing Activities
-   -   

Change in cash during the year 199,041 (1,067,839)

Cash, beginning of year 477,377 1,545,216

Cash, end of year $ 676,418 $ 477,377

Cash consists of :
Cash and cash equivalents, Note 4 $ 602,391 $ 392,891
Trust asset, Note 14 74,027 84,486

$ 676,418 $ 477,377
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HAY RIVER HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 1. Hay River Health & Social Services Authority
The Hay River Health & Social Services Authority (the Authority) was established under the Societies
Act on November 1, 2003. The Authority operates under the Hospital Insurance and Health and Social Services 
Act of the Northwest Territories to manage, control and operate the public health facilities and services assigned 
to it by the Government of the Northwest Territories Department of Health and Social Services.
 
The Authority is a public body performing a function of the Government of the Northwest Territories. Paragraph 
149(1)(c) of the Federal Income Tax Act provides that a public body performing a function of government 
in Canada is exempt from taxation.

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation
The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards prescribed for governments as recommended by the Canadian Public Sector Accounting
Board and by the directive of the Government of the Northwest Territories - Department of Health and
Social Services (DHSS). Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted by the Authority are as follows:

The financial statements do not include the assets, liabilities and activities of any organizations that are 
related to the Authority, such as the Hay River Health and Wellness Foundation.

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are  
recognized in the year in which they are earned and measurable. Expenses are recorded as they are 
incurred and measurable based upon receipt of goods or services and/or the legal obligation to pay. 

Funds from external parties and earnings thereon restricted by agreement or legislation are accounted 
for as deferred revenue until used for the purpose specified.

Fund Accounting
The accounts of the Authority are maintained in accordance with fund accounting procedures.  The 
operations of the Authority are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain 
objectives. Funds established by the Authority are as follows:

Operating Fund - activities associated with the Authority's daily operations.

Employee Leave and Termination Liability Fund - reflecting activities in employee leave and termination 
benefits combined with any amounts transferred from operations to fund these liabilities. This fund represents
liabilities which will be funded in the year they become due through regular annual allocations from the 
Government of the Northwest Territories (GNWT).

Revenue and Expenditure Recognition
The basis of accounting followed in the financial statement presentation includes revenues recognized
in the period in which the transactions or events occurred that gave rise to the revenues. All revenues
are recorded on an accrual basis, except when the accruals cannot be determined with a reasonable degree
of certainty or when their estimating is impracticable.

The Authority is primarily funded by the GNWT in accordance with budget arrangements established by
the DHSS. Under the arrangement, the Authority is responsible for the net deficit from operations and is allowed
to retain surpluses from core programs. Any capital funding not spent may be retained for future capital 
purchases. These policies do not apply to contribution agreements, where an accounting of and return of 
surpluses may be required

Other revenue is recognized when the service is performed or the goods are provided.
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HAY RIVER HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue and Expenditure Recognition (continued)
Government transfers are recognized as revenues when the transfer is authorized and any eligibility criteria 
are met, except to the extent that transfer stipulations give rise to an obligation that meets the definition of 
a liability. Transfers are recognized as deferred revenues when transfer stipulations give rise to a liability. 
Transfer revenue is recognized in the statement of operations as the stipulation liabilities are settled.
Operating transfers are recognized as revenue in the period in which the events giving rise to the transaction 
occur, providing the transfers are authorized, any eligible criteria have been met and reasonable estimates
of the amounts can be determined.

The Authority follows the deferral method of accounting for restricted contributions. These revenues are 
recognized in the year in which the related expenditures are incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as
revenue when received or receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is 
reasonably assured.

Expenditures are recognized in the period the goods and services are acquired, a liability is incurred
or transfers are due.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand and balances within banks, net of outstanding cheques, 
and are not subject to significant risk of changes in value.

Reserves
The DHSS policy requires the Authority to establish the following reserves:

Surplus Reserve - reflects funds maintained in a reserve according to the DHSS Operations and
Maintenance Surplus Retention Policy.

Employee Future Benefit Reserve - the funds received in advance for the severance liability of
employees who were transferred to the Authority from the GNWT. These liabilities are reduced as 
employees are paid out upon termination of employment with the Authority.

Cash Reserve - established for the purpose of assisting with any future short-term cash deficiency.
Withdrawals from the reserve will be made only when an insufficient cash balance exists to make
necessary payments. Appropriations to this reserve will be done to maintain the $500,000 balance
as approved by the GNWT.

The Authority does not have sufficient funds to cover these reserves.

Tangible Capital Assets
The GNWT retains ownership of all tangible capital assets (TCA) used by the Authority, or purchased by the 
Authority (regardless of source of funding for the purchase). The GNWT amortizes TCAs over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets at the rates established in the Financial Administration Manual of the GNWT over 
the following terms:

Buildings 40 years
Hardware and Software Systems 5 - 10 Years
Major Medical Equipment 5 - 15 Years
Leasehold Improvements Lesser of useful life or lease term plus renewal

The TCAs used by the Authority and held on behalf of, or in trust for, the GNWT are not recognized by the 
Authority in the financial statements.

The statement of operations reflects the rent expense amount that would otherwise be considered 
amortization expense for the fiscal year with an offsetting corresponding amount as a Grant-In-Kind revenue.
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HAY RIVER HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Inventories of Supplies
Inventories of supplies include inventory held for use in the process of providing the services of the Authority.
Inventories consist of equipment, parts, pharmaceuticals and office supplies, which are distributed to 
clients at no or nominal charges. Inventory is recorded at the lower of cost and replacement value. Cost is 
determined on a first-in, first-out basis using average cost.

Employee Future Benefits and Compensated Absences
Under the terms and conditions of employment, Health Authority employees may earn non-pension benefits for
resignation, retirement and removal costs. Eligible employees earn benefits based on years of service to a 
maximum entitlement based on terms of employment. Eligibility is based on a variety of factors including place
of hire, date employment commenced and reason for termination. Benefit entitlements are paid upon 
resignation, retirement or death of an employee. The expected cost of providing these benefits is recognized as
employees render services. Termination benefits are also recorded when employees are identified for lay-off.
Compensated absences include sick, special, parental and maternity leave. Accumulating non-vesting sick and
special leave are recognized in the period the employee provides services, whereas parental and maternity 
leave are event driven and are recognized when the leave commences.

For benefits earned prior to September 1, 1996 but still outstanding, no accrual is made for contingent
revenue as described in Note 13. The revenue is expected to be received in the year that the outstanding
liability falls due.

Pensions
Pension benefits to the Retirement Plan for Employees of the Hay River Health and Social Services Authority 
are reported on an actuarial going concern basis. This is done to determine the current value of future entitlement 
and uses various estimates. When actual experience varies from estimates or when actuarial assumptions  
change, the adjustments are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated average remaining service lives
of the contributors. Recognition of actuarial gains and losses commences in the year following the effective date 
of the related actuarial valuations. In addition, immediate recognition of a previously unrecognized net 
actuarial gain or loss may be required upon a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement. 

The Authority and its contracted physicians make contributions to a physician directed investment fund 
administered by the Government of Canada. These contributions represent the total pension liability of the 
Authority and are recognized in the accounts on a current basis.

Financial Instruments
All significant financial assets, liabilities and equity instruments of the Authority are either recognized or
disclosed in the financial statements together with available information for a reasonable assessment of
future cash flows, credit risk, liquidity risk and actuarial risk. Where practical the fair values of
financial assets and liabilities have been determined and disclosed; otherwise only available information 
pertinent to fair value has been disclosed.
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HAY RIVER HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial Instruments  (continued)

The Authority’s accounting policy for financial instruments is as follows:

This category includes cash, trust assets, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued liabilities, 
payroll liabilities, capital advances, and trust liabilities. They are initially recognized at cost and 
subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment 
losses on financial assets. Financial instruments with actively traded markets are reported at fair value, with
any unrealized gains and losses reported in income. All other financial instruments are reported at amortized 
costs and tested for impairment at each reporting date. Any impairments of the financial assets is 
charged to income in the period in which the impairment is determined. In the event that a previously
impaired asset increases and the increase can be related to an event that occurred after the impairment 
was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed to the extent of the improvement.

Transaction costs related to financial instruments in the amortized cost category are added to the carrying 
value of the instrument.

Write-downs on financial assets in the amortized cost category are recognized when the amount of a
loss is known with sufficient precision, and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Financial 
assets are then written down to net recoverable value with the write down being recognized in the 
statement of operations

Transaction costs on the acquisition, sale or issue of financial instruments are expensed when incurred.

Non-Financial Assets
Non-financial assets are accounted for as assets by the Authority because they can be used to provide
government services in futures periods. These assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities.
They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are not intended for sale in the normal
course of operations.  The change in non-financial assets during the year, together with the excess of 
revenues over expenses, provides the consolidated change in net financial assets (debt) for the year.

Measurement Uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and 
liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Such estimates are periodically reviewed and 
any adjustments necessary are reported in earnings in the period in which they become known. Actual results
could differ from these estimates.

Segmented Information
The Hay River Health & Social Services Authority segments its operating expenses for financial reporting purposes 
based upon areas of service type. This information is provided on the statement of operations.
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HAY RIVER HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 3. Future Accounting Changes

Revenue - Section PS 3400
PSAB has implemented changes to Section PS 3400 - Revenue, that specifically outlines the accounting treatment
and reporting of revenues arising from transactions that include performance obligations; such that the revenues
should not be realized until the entity has satisfied the performance obligations. These changes are to be applied
to fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2022, but early adoption is permitted. The updated PS 3400 has not
yet been adopted by the Authority and the impact of the transition to these changes has not yet been determined.

Note 4. Cash and Cash Equivalents
2020 2019

Cash $ 602,391 $ 392,891

Note 5. Special Purpose Funds - Nil Report

Note 6. Portfolio Investments - Nil Report

Note 7. Accounts Receivable
Receivables AFDA Net Net

2020 2020 2020 2019

Due from GNWT - HSS $ 790,551     $ -                $ 790,551          $ 989,270         
Due from GNWT - Finance 12,690       -                12,690            5,163             
Due from GNWT - Infrastructure 4,189         -                4,189              5,275             
Due from GNWT - Justice 1,549         -                1,549              978                
Due from GNWT - Human Resources -             -                -                  -                 
Due from Government of Nunavut -             -                -                  -                 
Due from WSCC 29,587       -                29,587            63,939           
Due from NTHSSA 59,336       -                59,336            33,752           
Hay River Hospital & Wellness Foundation 381            -                381                 -                 
GST rebate receivable 17,442       -                17,442            18,042           
General accounts receivable 242,344     (76,639)         165,705          168,528         

$ 1,158,069  $ (76,639)         $ 1,081,430       $ 1,284,947      

Note 8. Inventories
2020 2019

Medical and surgical $ 150,314          $ 168,699         
Pharmaceutical 22,224            20,699
Laboratory 10,249            10,456           
Other supplies 22,672            17,406           

$ 205,459          $ 217,260         

Inventories are held for consumption in the process of providing services and are distributed at no charge or
for a nominal fee.
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HAY RIVER HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 9. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
2020 2019

Due to GNWT - HSS $ 2,954 $ 30,784
Due to GNWT - Finance -   33,056
Due to GNWT - Justice -   -   
Due to GNWT - Infrastructure 567 5,768
Due to NTHSSA 51,955 92,311
Due to Government of Nunavut -   -   
Due to WSCC -   -   
Hay River Hospital & Wellness Foundation 681 623
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 565,264 930,544
Unspent donations 18,156 18,156
Special purpose fund liabilities 57,779 48,642

697,356 1,159,884

Payroll liabilities 2,694,836 1,900,861
$ 3,392,192 $ 3,060,745

Note 10. Due From and To the Government of Canada 
2020 2019

Receivables
NIHB administration support funding $ -   $ 50,000
Miscellaneous receivable 3,434 3,457

$ 3,434 $ 53,457

Payables
Advances for projects on behalf of the Government of Canada $ -   $ -   
Miscellaneous payables -   -   

$ -   $ -   

Note 11. Capital Lease Obligations - Nil Report

Note 12. Pensions
The Authority sponsors a contributory defined benefit pension plan for substantially all of its employees           
called "Retirement Plan for Employees of the Hay River Health and Social Services Authority".
The net value of the plan asset and liability is recorded on the statement of financial position based on       
the funded status of the plan on a going concern valuation performed by an independent actuary.       
An actuary valuation is done on an annual basis as of January 1 and is extrapolated to March 31 for 
presentation on the financial statements. The extrapolation assumes that from January 1 to March 31 the
plan will follow the pattern from the January 1 valuation exactly, but actual contribution amounts are used.

Employees are required to contribute 8.15% of their pensionable earnings up to the yearly maximum         
pensionable earnings (YMPE) plus 10.4% of their earnings, if any, in excess of the YMPE. The Authority       
contributes to the plan 1.88 (prior to January 1, 2020 was 1.68) times the employee portion and provides 
additional funding when the present value of the obligation under the solvency method exceeds the accumulated 
assets available to fund the member's benefit entitlements in the plan. 

The pension plan provides benefits based on the number of years of credited service limited to the maximum 
allowed within the plan. Benefits are determined by a formula set out within the plan; they are not based on the 
financial status of the pension plan. The basic benefit formula is 1.5 percent per year of pensionable service 
multiplied by the average of the best five consecutive years of earnings up to the YMPE and 2% for amounts in 
excess of the YMPE.
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HAY RIVER HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 12. Pensions (continued)
2020 2019 

Accrued benefit obligation $ 50,238,000 $ 42,022,000
Market-related value of pension fund assets       67,021,000 60,691,000

(16,783,000) (18,669,000)

Unamortized actuarial gains / (losses) (1,945,000) 3,542,000

Pension liability (accrued asset)       $ (18,728,000) $ (15,127,000)

Impairment on value of accrued pension asset 1,945,000 -   
Adjusted pension liability (accrued asset) realizable by the Authority $ (16,783,000) $ (15,127,000)

The pension liability (asset) includes the following components:       

2020 2019

Pension liability (accrued asset) - beginning of year $ (15,127,000) $ (12,464,000)

Cash items:
Member contributions (1,172,000) (1,122,000)
Employer contributions (3,405,000) (3,027,000)
Benefit payments (2,236,000) (4,596,000)
Drawdown from plan assets 2,236,000 4,596,000

Net change to pension liability from cash items (4,577,000) (4,149,000)

Accrual items:
Current period benefit cost 2,741,000 2,684,000
Amortization of actuarial gains/losses (705,000) (352,000)
Interest on average accrued benefit obligation 2,281,000 2,149,000
Expected earnings on average pension fund assets (3,341,000) (2,995,000)

976,000 1,486,000
Pension liability (accrued asset) before impairment $ (18,728,000) $ (15,127,000)

The pension expense (revenue) is included in the statement of operations as a component of undistributed amounts.      

2020 2019 

Pension expense (revenue) $ (1,656,000) $ (2,663,000)

Expected earnings on plan assets 5.22% 6.05%
Actual earnings on plan assets 5.23% 6.50%

Difference between actual and expected 0.01% 0.45%

14



HAY RIVER HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 12. Pensions (continued)
Valuation method and assumptions:

Actuarial valuations for accounting purposes are performed using the projected benefit method prorated on       
services. The net unamortized actuarial loss is to be amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected        
average remaining service life of the related employee groups.       

The actuarial valuation was based on a number of assumptions about future events, such as inflation rates,       
interest rates, wage and salary increases and employee turnover and mortality. The assumptions used        
reflect the government's best estimates. The significant actuarial assumptions and rates are listed below:       

2020 2019
Date of actuarial valuation 1-Jan-20 1-Jan-20
Date of next valuation 1-Jan-21 1-Jan-20
Discount rate at valuation 4.55% 5.40%
Date of audited financial statements 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-20
Discount rate at March 31 extrapolation 4.85% 5.40%
Market value of the plan assets 65,275,000$   58,556,000$  
Expected return on plan assets 5.40% 5.15%
Future inflation 2.00% 2.00%
Future compensation increases 2.50% 2.50%
Expected average remaining service life (years) 7.7                  7.4                 

The asset was valued using an adjusted market value method, which spreads out any variance between the 
return on investment accrued in the year and the expected return on the investments using the going concern 
rates as outlined above. Inclusion rates for these variances are 33% of the prior year, 67% of the variance from 
2 years prior and 100% of all variances beyond. This assumption allows for a smoothed value of  the asset.

The employer funding targets, under the going concern method, are valued using the actuarial cost method, 
which allows for a more accurate matching of accrued benefits to contributions. The funding target is equal 
to the present value of the benefit based on employee service years incurred prior to the valuation date and the
projected average earnings upon retirement. A deficit results when the market value of the investment is less than
the funding target. By law, a deficit must be funded over a max of 15 years through special payments and
a surplus can be used to pay current employer contributions. There is a plan surplus under the going 
concern method. Under the solvency method of accounting, it is assumed that all employees that are eligible 
for the pension plan will cease being members and will be paid out based on their situation as of the valuation 
date. Under the solvency method there is a plan deficit that is required to be funded in accordance with the 
requirements of the Pension Benefits Standards Act,1985 with minimum special payments over a 5 year term 
of $32,500 per month.

Plan amendments:
As at the valuation date, there have been no amendments to the plan since the date of the previous valuation.
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HAY RIVER HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 13. Employee Future Benefits and Compensated Absences
In addition to pension benefits, the Authority provides severance (resignation and retirement), removal and 
compensated absence (sick, special, maternity and parental leave) benefits to its employees. The benefits plans
are not pre-funded and thus have no assets, resulting in a plan deficit equal to the accrued benefit obligation.
Severance benefits are paid to the Hay River Health and Social Services Authority employees based on the 
type of termination (e.g. resignation versus retirement) and appropriate combinations that include inputs such as 
when the employee was hired, the rate of pay, the number of years of continuous employment and age.
The benefit is subject to maximum benefit limits. Removal benefits are subject to several criteria, the main ones 
being location of hire, employee category and length of service. The benefits under these categories were 
valued using a projection methodology based on the date employees are projected to leave the Authority.
Compensated absence benefits generally accrue as employees render services and are paid upon the 
occurrence of an event resulting in eligibility for benefits under the terms of the plan. Events include, but are
not limited to, employee or dependent illness, and death of an immediate family member. Non-accruing benefits
include maternity and parental leave. Benefits that accrue under compensated absence benefits were actually
valued using the expected utilization methodology.

Valuation Results

The actuarial valuation was completed as at March 31, 2020. The effective date of the next actuarial
valuation is March 31, 2021. The liabilities are actuarially determined as the present value of the accrued benefits
at February 15, 2020 and the results extrapolated to March 31, 2020. The values presented below are
the benefits under the Compensated Absences and Termination Benefits for the Authority extracted from 
the valuation report for the consolidated Government of the Northwest Territories.

Severance and Compensated
Removal Absences 2020 2019

Change in Obligation
Accrued benefit obligation, opening $ 2,551,987 $ 192,262 $ 2,744,249 2,417,901
Current period benefit costs 187,524 13,752 201,276 198,374
Interest accrued 78,231 5,877 84,108 92,211
Benefit payments (177,484) (360,292) (537,776) (330,099)
Plan amendments -   -   -   -   
Actuarial gains (losses) (335,411) 321,541 (13,870) 365,862
Accrued benefit obligation, closing 2,304,847 173,140 2,477,987 2,744,249

Unamortized net actuarial (gain) loss (22,807) (821,210) (844,017) (1,021,113)

Accrued benefit (liability) asset 2,282,040 (648,070) 1,633,970 1,723,136

Other employee future benefits -   -   -   -   
Other compensated absences -   -   -   -   

Total employee future benefits and
compensated absences $ 2,282,040 $ (648,070) $ 1,633,970 $ 1,723,136

Benefits Expense
Current period benefit cost 187,524 13,752 201,276 198,374
Interest accrued 78,231 5,877 84,108 92,211
Plan amendments -   -   -   -   
Amortization of actuarial (gain) loss 74,913 88,313 163,226 119,146

$ 340,668 $ 107,942 $ 448,610 $ 409,731
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For the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 13. Employee Future Benefits and Compensated Absences (continued)
The discount rate used to determine the accrued benefit obligation is an average of 2.70%, down from the prior
years rate of 3.20% . No inflation rate was applied. The expected payments during the next five fiscal years are:

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     Severance and Compensated
Removal Absences Total

2021 $ 422,457 $ 34,685 $ 457,142
2022 323,893 24,767 348,660
2023 257,879 18,508 276,387
2024 225,205 15,524 240,729
2025 194,301 12,514 206,815

$ 1,423,735 $ 105,998 $ 1,529,733

Contingent Revenue
Revenue of $55,841 representing accrued severance and removal for employees on August 31, 1996 and which, 
in management's view, pursuant to the terms of the transfer agreement on that date between the GNWT and 
the Town of Hay River, is owed to the Authority by GNWT, has not been recorded in these financial
statements. Recognition of this amount is contingent upon GNWT agreeing to payment terms.

Note 14. Trust Assets and Liabilities
The amount held in patient trust assets are funds held on behalf of the patients in residential care. The funds do
not belong to the Authority as they are restricted for those patients. The amount in the patient trust liability is
equivalent to the balance owed to the residential care patients. The discrepancy between the trust asset and 
liability are for amounts deposited into the bank account in error.

2020 2019

Patient Trust Asset $ 74,027 $ 84,486

Patient Trust Liability $ 73,258 $ 83,690

Note 15. Services Provided Without Charge
During the year, the Authority received without charge from the Government various administrative services, the
value of which is not reflected in these financial statements. The administrative costs include legal services by 
the Department of Justice, insurance coverage, actuarial valuations and internal audit services provided by the
Department of Finance and use of vehicles, building repairs and utilities by the Department of Public Works.

The Authority also receives from the Government, without any rental charges, the use of facilities and equipment 
to provide public health and social services. The rental facilities used include the new Hay River Regional Health 
Center, the HH Williams Memorial Hospital, Woodland Manor, the Adult Supported Living units, the Children's 
Group Home and Women's Resource Center. Various medical equipment is also provided free of any rental fees.
The use of these facilities would have cost the Authority an estimated $2,119,933 ($2,027,428 in 2019) based on 
the Government's amortization expense for these assets.

Note 16. Contractual Obligations
Contractual obligations are obligations of the Authority to others that will become liabilities in the future when the 
terms of those contracts or agreements are met.
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HAY RIVER HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 16. Contractual Obligations (continued)
The Authority has entered into agreements for, or is contractually committed to, the following expenses 
payable subsequent to March 31, 2020.

Residential Equipment Operational Total
Expires in fiscal year 2021 2026 2021

2021 $ 160,200 $ 170,124 $ 58,825 $ 389,149
2022 -   89,439 1,310 90,749
2023 -   80,229 -   80,229
2024 -   78,905 -   78,905
2025 -   76,455 -   76,455
Subsequent -   84,648 -   84,648

$ 160,200 $ 579,800 $ 60,135 $ 800,135

Note 17. Contingent Liabilities
In common with many health authorities, claims are made against the Authority and its staff. The Authority
is defending actions brought against them and management does not believe a significant loss will occur.
An allowance has been made for any claim or litigation where it is likely that there will be a future payment 
and a reasonable estimate of the loss can be made. The allowance is based upon estimates determined by 
the Authority's legal experts and human resources staff experience or case law and historical data in similar 
circumstances.        

With any employer, especially those with a union, there are always risks of employee grievances.
At the end of the fiscal year a number of grievances were awaiting arbitration. In the opinion of management
and legal council, no material accrued liability needs to be established. Should any further loss result from 
the resolution of these claims, such loss will be charged to operations in the year of resolution.

The Authority's operations are affected by federal, territorial and local laws and regulations regarding
Environmental protection. The Authority is committed to meeting these existing laws and regulations.
Management is not aware of any material environmental liabilities that resulted during the year.

Under the terms of the contribution agreement between the Government of the Northwest Territories, the 
Authority may be liable to repay any restricted or contributed fund not expended in accordance with contribution 
agreements. The Authority has recorded all known unexpended contribution funds repayable.

Note 18. Budget
The budget figures are the opening budgets as approved by the Authority's Public Administrator
and the GNWT Department of Health and Social Services. The budget figures are not audited and are 
intended for information purposes only.

Note 19. Economic Dependence
The Authority receives its funding primarily from the GNWT. If the funding arrangements were to change,
management is of the opinion that the Authority operations would be significantly affected.

Note 20. Subsequent Events 

The significant decrease in market values due to the drop in the economy at the declaration of the world 
pandemic declared in March 2020 have since recovered. This has resulted in the significant decrease in the net 
pension plan asset from the market value at March 31, 2020 as reported in Note 12, being recovered 
subsequent to year end to be inline with the valuation completed as at January 1, 2020 of $18,054,000 .

Note 21. Comparative Figures

The financial statements have been reclassified, where applicable, to conform to the presentation used in the
current year.
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Note 22. Related Party Transactions 
The Authority is related in terms of common ownership to all GNWT created departments and public 
agencies. The Authority enters into transactions with these entities in the normal course of operations.
The Authority is provided various administrative services by the GNWT, the value of which is not reflected in
these financial statements. The administrative costs include legal services by the Department of Justice, 
insurance coverage by the Department of Finance, internal audit services provided by the Department
of Finance and repairs, utilities and facility and equipment rental provided by the Department of Infrastructure.

Transactions with related parties and balances at year-end are included in the financial statements, but
not disclosed separately other than in this note:

Accounts Allowance for Net Net
Receivables Doubtful Accounts

2020 2020 2020 2019
Due from related parties
Accounts Receivable
GNWT, Note 7
     Department of HSS $ 790,551 $ -   $ 790,551 $ 989,270
     Department of Finance 12,690 -   12,690 5,163
     Department of Infrastructure 4,189 -   4,189 5,275
     Department of Justice 1,549 -   1,549 978

808,979 -   808,979 1,000,686

NTHSSA - HQ, Note 7 15,429 -   15,429 31,817
     NTHSSA - Finance 31,626 -   31,626 -   
     NTHSSA - Other 8,765 -   8,765 -   
     Stanton Territorial Health Region 747 -   747 -   
     Yellowknife/Fort Resolution Region 2,769 -   2,769 1,935

59,336 -   59,336 33,752
Hay River Hospital Foundation 381 -   381 -   

$ 868,696 $ -   $ 868,696 $ 1,034,438

2020 2019
Due to related parties
Accounts Payable:
GNWT, Note 9
     Department of HSS $ 2,954 $ 30,783
     Department of Finance -   33,057
     Department of Justice -   -   
     Department of Infrastructure 567 5,768

3,521 69,608

NTHSSA - HQ, Note 9
     Yellowknife Region 49,108 16,675
     DehCho Region -   519
     Fort Smith Region -   -   
     Stanton Territorial Health Region 2,847 75,117

51,955 92,311
Hay River Hospital Foundation 681 623

$ 56,157 $ 162,542

Deferred revenues, GNWT-HSSA, Note 26 56,633 56,633

Contributions repayable, GNWT-HSSA, Note 27 2,581,623 2,603,207

Accountable capital advances, GNWT-HSSA, Note 28 5,829 5,829
$ 112,790 $ 2,828,211
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Note 22. Related Party Transactions (continued)
2020 2019

Revenues
GNWT
     Department of Health & Social Services $ 33,054,429 $ 31,700,188
     Department of Finance 12,690 -   
     Department of Infrastructure 6,595 5,163
     Department of Justice 2,173 4,313
     Department of Human Resources 559 10,832

33,076,446 31,720,496

NTHSSA - HQ 36,850 104,792
     DehCho HSSA 5,409 19,836
     Yellowknife HSSA 4,739 130
     Stanton Territorial Health Authority 1,581 -   
     Beaufort-Delta HSSA 1,428 -   
     Fort Smith Health Centre 1,311 976
     Sahtu HSSA -   107,807
Hay River Hospital Foundation 362 -   
NWT Housing Corp. -   160

$ 33,128,126 $ 31,954,197

2020 2019
Expenses
GNWT
     Department of Health & Social Services $ 5,495 $ 135
     Department of Human Resources -   -   
     Department of Infrastructure -   8,555
     Department of Justice -   -   

5,495 8,690
NTHSSA
     Stanton Territorial Health Authority 157,146 230,677
     Yellowknife HSSA 65,024 148,393
     Fort Smith HSSA -   923

$ 227,665 $ 388,683

Related party transactions are in the normal course of operations and have been valued in these financial 
statements at the exchange amount which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by 
the related parties.
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Note 23. Financial Instruments 

The Authority is exposed to credit and liquidity risks from its financial instruments. Qualitative and 
quantitative analysis of the significant risk from the Authority's financial instruments by type of risk is 
provided below:

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Authority if a debtor fails to make payments of interest and 
principal when due. The Authority is exposed to this risk relating to its, cash, special purpose funds, 
trust assets and accounts receivable. 

The Authority holds its cash and trust assets, deposits in trust accounts, with federally regulated 
chartered banks who are insured by the Canadian Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

Accounts receivable are due from various governments, government agencies, corporations and individuals. 
Credit risk related to accounts receivable is mitigated by internal controls as well as policies and oversight 
over arrears for ultimate collection. Management has determined that a portion of accounts receivable 
are impaired based on specific identification as well as age of receivables. These amounts are as disclosed 
in Note 7.

The Authority's maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the financial assets less the pension 
plan and trust asset for a total of $1,687,255 (2019 - $1,731,295).

The world pandemic that was declared in March 2020 has resulted in an increase in unemployment, volatile 
financial markets and overall economic uncertainty. As a result the Authority is exposed to an increased amount 
of credit risk from its customers and has account for this increased risk in allowance for doubtful accounts.  

Concentration of Credit Risk
Concentration risk arises when a customer has more than ten percent of the total accounts receivable,
which increases the Authority's risk in the event the customer does not fulfill their obligation. The Authority 
does have concentration risk. At March 31, 2020, one customer in accounts receivable accounts for 74%
(2019 - 75%) of the total balance which subjects the Authority to concentration risk. This risk is 
monitored through regular review of the outstanding balances in receivables.

As all the Authority's cash is held in one Canadian bank, they are subject to further concentration risk.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Authority will not be able to meet all cash outflow obligations as they 
come due. The Authority mitigates this risk by monitoring cash activities and expected outflows through 
budgeting and maintaining an adequate amount of cash to cover unexpected cash outflows should they 
arise. Total financial assets are $118,544,282  including the $16,783,000 pension asset; financial liabilities are
$7,744,202. The authority has disclosed future financial liabilities and commitments in Notes 13, 16 and 17.

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market risk is composed of currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk. The defined benefit pension plan asset valuation holds significant risk due to market fluctuations which can
significantly impact the value. As a result of the world pandemic declared in March 2020, the value of the 
pension plan has taken a significant decrease and the actuarial has adjusted the valuation accordingly. This  
associated risk in market value is reduced through ensuring that the pension plan has a widely divested portfolio.

Currency Risk

The Authority deals exclusively in Canadian funds held in the bank, but does carry some foreign investments within 
the pension plan and  is reduced through ensuring that the pension plan has a widely divested portfolio.

There have been no significant changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk or policies, 
procedures, and methods used to measure the risk.
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Note 24. Expenses by Object

2020 2020 2019
Budget Actual Actual

Compensation
     Salaries and wages $ 24,905,646 $ 26,494,885 $ 25,205,835

300,000 227,689 367,396
770,004 (981,000) (1,719,709)

1,808,004 1,831,776 1,253,932
1,091,844 1,156,189 1,094,141

598,896 484,831 817,720
680,004 680,000 560,000
362,004 421,162 349,025
411,672 358,442 441,915
248,724 323,509 268,250
425,520 317,974 376,574
277,128 314,659 290,578
337,500 288,968 148,310
173,724 214,025 173,346
335,916 213,382 327,184
100,008 163,498 159,647
168,768 164,459 158,813
51,516 99,741 40,157
59,712 80,496 170,995

100,164 71,234 93,071
61,008 64,311 102,989
32,604 33,948 36,602
47,004 16,035 33,099
31,848 36,645 39,799
7,296 13,203 9,919

     Severance and removal
Pension plan special payments and valuation adjustment 
Locums
Medical supplies
Referred out services
Grants and contributions
Travel assistance
Equipment maintenance
Rent
Foster care
Phone and postage
Locum removal
Travel
Professional fees
Training
Office supplies
Purchases service personnel
Minor equipment 
Software licensing
Honorariums
Garbage
Memberships
Advertising
Bank charges
Bad debt - 6,191 (6,608)

$ 33,386,514 $ 33,096,252 $ 30,792,980

Note 25. Prepaid Expenses and Deposits
2020 2019

Service and maintenance packages $ 110,376 $ 125,838
Pension special payments 95,000 57,763
Travel 1,124 14,961
Deposit 2,000 2,000

$ 208,500 $ 200,562

Note 26. Deferred Revenue 
Deferred revenue represents funds that have been received for specific programs but remain unspent at
March 31, 2020 as follows:

2020 2019

Government of the Northwest Territories
   Department of Health and Social Services

Professional Development Initiative $ 56,633 $ 56,633
2020/2021 Core funding received in advance -   -   

$ 56,633 $ 56,633
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Note 27. Contributions Repayable 
Contributions repayable represents funds that have been received for specific programs and are required 
to be repaid to the contributor as of March 31, 2020:

2020 2019

Government of the Northwest Territories
   Department of Health and Social Services

Core Physician Services Funding 11/12 $ 652,027 $ 652,027
Core Physician Services Funding 12/13 532,335 532,335
Homecare Enhancement 13/14 297 297
Grad Placement Program K. Miller 13/14 8,064 8,064
Transitional unspent funding 16/17 448,000 448,000
Children Who Witness Violence 17/18 - double payment 6,250 6,250
Foster Care unspent restricted funding 17/18 -   205,705
Transitional unspent funding - HH Williams 17/18 -   49,314
Transitional unspent funding - New Health Center 17/18 -   58,120
Foster care unspent restricted funding 18/19 12,391 12,391
Homecare unspent restricted funding 18/19 4,459 4,459
Transitional unspent funding - New Health Center 18/19 271,137 271,137
Referred Out Services - core funding overpayment 18/19 355,000 355,000
Healthy Families/Collective Kitchen unspent funding 18/19 -   108
Transitional unspent funding - New Health Center 10/20 161,384 -   
Foster care unspent restricted funding 19/20 66,087 -   
Homecare unspent restricted funding 19/20 42,760 -   
Midwifery unspent restricted funding 19/20 21,432 -   

2,581,623 2,603,207

Hay River Metis Government Council
Living in Balance unspent funding 16/17 697 697

$ 2,582,320 $ 2,603,904

Note 28. Accountable Capital Advances from GNWT
The Authority has received advances from GNWT under capital contribution agreements for purchases
of capital assets. These advances are deferred by the Authority and purchases which fall under the
agreements, reduce the balance carried forward.

2020 2019

Beginning balance $ 5,829 $ 5,829
Capital purchases paid out of advanced funds -   -   
Ending balance $ 5,829 $ 5,829

Note 29. Accumulated Surplus (Deficit)
2020 2019

Operating fund accumulated surplus (deficit) $ 12,526,341 $ 11,049,802
Employee leave and termination liability fund (1,812,302) (1,723,136)
Cash Reserve 500,000 500,000

$ 11,214,039 $ 9,826,666
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2020 2020 2019
Budget Actual Actual 

Contributions from the GNWT
Department of Health and Social Services

Core Contribution Department of Health
Administrative and Support Services 7,209,000 $ 8,207,000 $ 7,813,000
Nursing Inpatient Services 4,233,000 4,541,000 4,108,000
Ambulatory Care 2,644,000 2,683,000 2,626,000
Diagnostic and Therapeutic Services 2,893,000 3,003,000 3,204,000
Community Health Programs 11,553,000 11,963,000 11,508,000
Community Social Programs 2,253,000 2,312,000 1,995,000
Supplementary Health Programs 22,000 22,000 22,000

30,807,000 32,731,000 31,276,000

Add: Additional funding for Renal Dialysis -  -  414,000
Add: Allocation of other region's physician surplus -  4,911
Less: Net contributions repayable/deferred -  (291,663) (642,987)

30,807,000 32,439,337 31,051,924

Other Department of Health and Social Services Contributions
Home and Community Care (Schedule A-1) 265,440 283,978 433,935
Healthy Families 12,984 -  -  
Collective Kitchens 27,000 20,397 20,304
Prenatal/Postnatal Parenting -  -  30,292
Children Who Witness Violence 12,504
Mental Health First Aid -  -  3,596
Applied Suicide Intervention Skills Training -  -  530

317,928 304,375 488,657

Total Department of Health 31,124,928 32,743,712 31,540,581

GNWT Department of Human Resources -  -  -  

Total Contribution from the GNWT $ 31,124,928 $ 32,743,712 $ 31,540,581
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HAY RIVER HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY
Schedule of Detailed Contribution Funding and Expenditures Schedule A-1
Home and Community Care
PO-4660am1
For the year ended March 31, 2020

2020 2019
Actual Actual 

Funding
Government of the Northwest Territories

Department of Health and Social Services $ 316,476 $ 514,110
less funds not yet received -   -   
less contributions repayable (32,498) (80,175)

283,978 433,935

Expenditures
Compensation and benefits 255,373 248,478
Supplies 8,328 13,535
Sundry 1,371 7,978
Equipment expense 3,786 100,776
Training 15,120 63,892

283,978 434,659
$ -   $ (724)

** Funds in the amount of $283,373 are receivable on the agreement as of the end of the year 
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HAY RIVER HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY
Schedule of Reserves Schedule B

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Balance, beginning of the year $ (1,723,136) $ (1,643,504) $ 500,000 $ 500,000 $ (1,223,136) $ (1,143,504)

Change to opening balances -   -   -   

(Increase) Decrease in employee future benefits 
and compensated absence (89,166) (79,632) -   -   (89,166) (79,632)

Transfers between reserves -   -   -   -   -   -   
Balance, end of year $ (1,812,302) $ (1,723,136) $ 500,000 $ 500,000 $ (1,312,302) $ (1,223,136)

2020 2019

Leave and Termination Benefits 
Reserve Cash Reserve Total Reserves

2020 2019 2020 2019
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Northwest Territories Health
and Social Services Authority
Box 1320, Yellowknife, NT
X1A 2L9

NTHSSA

Management Discussion and Analysis

Introduction

The Northwest Territories Health and Social Services Authority (NTHSSA) has prepared this
Management Discussion and Analysis to provide an overview of the operating activities and enhance the
overall financial disclosure; and to provide the context to the financial information contained in the
Authority’s 2019-2020 Audited Financial Statements. These activities demonstrate the commitment of the
NTHSSA management and the Northwest Territories Leadership Council (Leadership Council) in
assuming accountability for the delivery of Health and Social Services programs and services in a
responsible and transparent manner.

The NTHSSA, established on August 1, 2016, is an agency of the Government of the Northwest
Territories (GNWT) and responsible for the operation and delivery of health and social services in the
Northwest Territories in the Beaufort Delta, Dehcho, Fort Smith, Sahtu, and Yellowknife regions of the
NWT while also being responsible for the operation of the Stanton Territorial Hospital.

2019-2020 marks the third full year of operations of NTHSSA. The NTHSSA continues to identify,
monitor, and improve its operations with a focus on meeting the objectives in the NTHSSA Operational
Plan.

Working collaboratively with the Hay River Health and Social Services Authority, the Tłįchǫ Community
Services Agency, and the GNWT’s Department of Health and Social Services, the NTHSSA is part of an
integrated NWT health and social services system, working towards a one-system approach to provide
quality care to NWT residents.

The NTHSSA is responsible for the delivery of care and services in accordance with the territorial plan set
out by the Minister of Health and Social Services; specifically, the NTHSSA is responsible to:

· plan, develop and deliver programs and services;
· ensure operational policies, guidelines and standards of care are within the context of legislation,

regulation and Department of Health and Social Services policies;
· provide budget development, funding allocation, monitoring and financial reporting;
· provide quality and risk management;
· ensure recruitment, supervision and retention of professional staff;
· ensure staff training and professional development; and
· report and be accountable in accordance with legislation, regulations and agreements.
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Structure of the NTHSSA

The Leadership Council is the board of management for the NTHSSA.  The Leadership Council develops
a clear direction for the NTHSSA, ensures the NTHSSA is accountable and positioned to achieve
sustained results and supports the NTHSSA to achieve its legislative mandate to:

· deliver health services, social services, and health and wellness promotional activities within the
NWT;

· manage, control and operate each health and social services facility for which the NTHSSA is
responsible; and

· manage the financial, human and other resources necessary to perform the NTHSSA’s duties.

The Leadership Council is accountable to the Minister of Health and Social Services and provides advice
to the Minister on strategic directions for particular health and social services and programs related to
those services.

The Leadership Council is made up of nine (9) members: a Chairperson as appointed by the Minister; the
chairperson of each Regional Wellness Council (5); the chairperson of the Tłįchǫ Community Services
Agency; the chairperson of the Hay River Health and Social Services Authority and the Deputy Minister of
the Department of Health and Social Services (ex-officio and non-voting).

Each of the regions across the NTHSSA have  Regional Wellness Councils (RWC) that act as advisory
bodies to gather information from communities and residents, to provide feedback to the NWT Health and
Social Services System and to promote activities that support service delivery for the health and well-
being of patients, clients, and families.

The 2019-2020 Leadership Council included:
Chairperson: Mr. James Antoine
Vice-Chairperson: Ms. Ethel-Jean Gruben (Chair, Beaufort-Delta RWC)
Member: Ms. Patricia Schaefer (Chair, Fort Smith RWC)
Member: Mr. Brian Willows (Chair, Hay River RWC)
Member: Ms. Gina Dolphus (Chair, Sahtu RWC)
Member: Mr. Ted Blondin (Chair, TCSA)
Member: Ms. Ruby Simba (Chair, Dehcho RWC)
Member: Ms. Nancy Trotter (Chair, Yellowknife RWC)
Ex-officio and non-voting Member: Mr. Bruce Cooper (Deputy Minister, DHSS)

Through the NTHSSA’s CEO, operational and financial reporting is provided to the Leadership Council at
regularly scheduled Leadership Council meetings.

The NTHSSA is structured with six executive branches that are responsible for delivering health and
social services and programs across the NWT. Regional operational branches in the Beaufort Delta,
Dehcho, Sahtu, Fort Smith and Yellowknife regions of the NWT are supported by Territorial operational
branches guided by the CEO's office.
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The six executive branches include:

Office of the Chief Executive Officer: Corporate leadership; practitioner leadership; corporate workforce
planning; system collaboration; governance support.

Finance: Financial leadership; budgeting; financial reporting and analysis; financial operations.

Clinical Integration: Quality improvement and support for child, family and community wellness; territorial
quality, safety and client experience leadership; quality improvement and support for health services.

Corporate and Support Services: Informatics and health technology support and leadership; strategy and
planning leadership; patient movement operations; communications support.

Regional Operations: Primary care; community health clinic operations; home care; mental health and
addictions services; health promotion; public health; child and family services; family violence programs;
adult support services; rehabilitation services; long term care services; facility operations.

Stanton Territorial Hospital: Acute inpatient services; emergency services, specialty clinics, diagnostic
and therapeutic services; rehabilitation services in partnership with regional operations.

Financial Overview

The 2019-2020 initial Authority budget of was approved in the last quarter of the previous fiscal year.
Throughout the fiscal year, as program changes, new initiatives, and projects are identified;
corresponding adjustments are made to the initial fiscal year’s budget.  In total NTHSSA received funding
from GNWT contributions of $375.3M, with an additional $17.11M realized from Other sources of
revenue.

2019-2020 GNWT Funding Contribution Highlights

Ø Increase in funding for support service delivery in the Stanton Territorial Hospital.
Ø Increase in funding for Child and Family services.
Ø Increase in funding for Child and Youth services.
Ø Increase in funding for Day Shelter and Sobering Centre
Ø Increase in funding for 2019-20 Collective Agreement increases
Ø Increase in funding for Physician contracts

2019-2020 Operating Results

For the 2019-2020 fiscal year, revenue was approximately $46.798M higher than budget. The Actual
expenses were approximately $50.2M higher than budgeted.

NTHSSA remains committed to meeting its’ operational mandate and expected service levels;
notwithstanding, significant pressure in 2019-2020 on fiscal resources that exist within the NTHSSA has
resulted in a deficit of $26.129M.
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NTHSSA’s overall 2019-2020 actual revenue and expenses are summarized in the following charts:
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In comparing 2018-2019 to 2019-2020

Operating Environment

The NTHSSA provides health and social services across a vast geographical area of the NWT; from the
remote high Arctic communities of Paulatuk, Ulukhaktok and Sachs Harbour to the southern NWT/Alberta
border community of Fort Smith.

Delivering the NTHSSA mandate to such a large geographic area requires well-defined systems and
processes, culturally safe practices, as well as, a team of committed staff who are dedicated to ensuring
quality health and social services are provided to all NWT residents.

The NTHSSA Strategic Direction as noted in the 2019-2020 Operational Plan fall under three themes:

· Bette Future – Build a sustaninable health and social services system through enabling the
sustainability of our organization by developing our people, improving our technology and building
collaborative partnerships.

· Best Care – Care and services are responsive to children, individuals, families and communities
through optimizing our processes and build a foundation of quality and continuous improvement
that is culturally safe, appropriate and accessible.
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· Best Health -  Support the health and wellness of the population through realizing improved
quality of programs and services.

Identified key actions are detailed within the 2019-2020 Operational Plan to promote operational
sustainability:

· Align NTHSSA financial functions across regions to streamline operations
· Transition to a single financial system
· Implement standard onboarding and orientation for new employees

In the review of the operating results for the NTHSSA, the following strengths, weaknesses, opportunities
and threats that may have financial impacts have been noted:

Strengths Challenges

· The same financial system as GNWT
· NTHSSA wide Chart of Accounts

(improvements ongoing)
· NTHSSA wide Financial system (SAM)

· Recruitment challenges leading to the extensive
use of overtime and locums

· Need to re-evaluate Charts of Accounts
Expenditure structure and mapping

Opportunities Threats/Risks

· Increased use of Virtual Care
· Territorial Financial Structure
· Workforce Development

· Increasing deficit
· Aging population
· Vast georgraphical area of NWT
· Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic

Building on Strengths

In 2019-2020 NTHSSA transitioned to the GNWT wide System for Accountability and Management (SAM)
a single financial systems which aligns NTHSSA with the GNWT.  Implementing NTHSSA wide chart of
accounts in addition to the implementation of SAM will allow for better reporting and decision making.
NTHSSA is committed to learning and continuous improvement of Chart of Accounts.

Addressing Challenges

The NTHSSA will leverage the GNWT programs that support the NTHSSA’s commitment to improving the
ability to recruit, retain and develop a local workforce across the NWT.

NTHSSA leadership remains cognizant of the staffing levels that are currently required to meet service
level demands and the resultant fiscal pressures. NTHSSA leadership is reviewing core service
requirements, current position allocations and quality improvements with the goal of implementing
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changes that would maintain or improve the level of care and service delivery while effectively managing
and minimizing additional overtime and travel requirements.

Capturing Opportunities

In conjunction with the SAM implementation, some processes and staff have transitioned to the
Department of Finance at financial and employee shared services (FESS). During the SAM
implementation Finance realigned its organizational structure to allow for improved support to NTHSSA
executive and the regions. Restructuring of Finance will also provide for opportunities to standardize
functions across the regions, but may result in an increased investment in the first year.

Mitigating Risks

NTHSSA is committed to delivering the operational mandate in a manner respectful of the fiscal
environment of the GNWT. The newly established NTHSSA continues to provide opportunities to realign
services and care across the five regions and the Territorial Hospital that will improve health outcomes for
patients, clients and families; improve patient and client experience and improve organizational
performance by reducing overall costs.

The NTHSSA also recognizes that the health and social care professionals are in high demand across
Canada and will continue to work with both internal and external resources to expand health and human
resource plans to improve efforts to attract and retain qualified employees.   This was a particular
challenge in the 2019-2020 fiscal year, where casual staff use sharply increased in our Acute Care
services.

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a significant impact to our lives. NTHSSA started preparing for the
pandemic in the final quarter of the 2019-2020 fiscal year.  NTHSSA has worked with the office of the
Chief Public Health Officer to ensure the safety of patients and staff during the pandemic.  Financially,
NTHSSA incurred costs directly related to the Pandemic in  2019-2020. Federal funding will follow to
mitigate costs.

Financial Condition

As at March 31, 2020 NTHSSA incurred an operating deficit of $26.129M, which was $8.3M higher than
the budgeted operating deficit of $17.8M. This increased NTHSSA’s accumulated deficit to $126.991M.
For a detailed review of NTHSSA’s financial condition, refer to the Statement of Financial Position and
Statement of Operations and Accumulated Deficit.
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In Thousands
2019-2020

Actual
2018-2019

Actual
Accumulated (deficit) closing (126,991) (100,862)
Accumulated (deficit) opening (100,862) (88,791)

Annual (deficit) (26,129) (12,071)

Recovery of prior years’ expenses 1,185 2,581
Employee future benefits reserve 69 131
Unfunded items - Employee future benefit liability 8,646 10,116
Change in Employee future benefit (1,470) (1,409)

Compensation and benefits represent 50% of NTHSSA’s overall expenses and is a contributing factor to
NTHSSA accumulated deficit. Some of the key factors in this area relate to staffing models, overtime, sick
time, relocation, and removal costs within the Collective Agreement between the Union of Northern
Workers and the GNWT. For the Employee Future Benefit liability, the NTHSSA recognizes the expenses
on an accrual basis; however, funding is associated to current annual expenses and not to accruals for an
estimated future liability.

During the year, the Authority received without charge from the Government, services including utilities,
repairs and maintenance, payroll processing, medical travel costs, insurance and risk management, legal
counsel, construction management, records storage, computer operations, asset disposal, project
management, and translation services. The services are part of the central agency role of the
Government and no estimate can be reasonably determined.  The Government provides without charge
the use of buildings, equipment, leasehold improvements, certain operating costs for Stanton Hospital
under P3 agreement, mainframe and software systems, medical equipment, and vehicles for use in
program and service delivery. These would have cost the Authority an estimated $24.979M (2019 -
$9.896M) based on the calculated depreciation expense and P3 service payments by the Government
and have been recognized as rent expense and contracted out services related to P3, with a
corresponding grant-in-kind in the financial statements.
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Summary and Outlook

The 2019-2020 fiscal year represented the third full year of operations for the NTHSSA.  NTHSSA
continues to focus on its strategic direction of Better Future, Best Care and Best Health. This fiscal year
has been challenging and has impacted the finanacial position of NTHSSA: Accredition, COVID-19,
increased reliance on the use of Locums,  and the opening of the new Stanton Territorial Hospital.

NTHSSA primary focus for the 2020-2021 fiscal year is to balance the public health measure to prevent
viral spread with the continuation of provision of necessary healthcare and social services.  In addition,
NTHSSA will focus on defining and realizing deficit reductions strategies through partnership with the
GNWT’s Department of Health and Social Services and the Department of Finance.

S U E  C U L L E N
Chief Executive Officer

25 August 2020



Northwest Territories Health and Social Services Authority

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for preparing the accompanying financial statements in accordance with Canadian
public sector accounting standards (PSAS). Where PSAS permits alternative accounting methods, management
has chosen those it deems most appropriate in the circumstances. A summary of significant accounting policies
are described in Note 2 to the financial statements. Management is responsible for making certain estimates and
judgements required for the preparation of the financial statements. Management is responsible for ensuring that
financial information presented elsewhere in the annual report is consistent with the financial statements.

Management is responsible for maintaining financial and management systems and practices which are designed
to provide reasonable assurance that reliable financial and non-financial information is available on a timely basis,
that assets are acquired economically, are used to further the Authority’s objectives, are protected from loss or
unauthorized use and that the Authority complies with applicable legislation. Management recognizes its
responsibility for conducting the Authority’s affairs in accordance with the requirements of applicable laws and
sound business principles, and for maintaining standards of conduct that are appropriate to an agent of the
Territorial Government. Management reviews the operation of financial and management systems to promote
compliance and to identify changing requirements or needed improvements.

The Auditor General of Canada provides an independent, objective audit for the purpose of expressing her opinion
on the financial statements. She also considers whether the transactions that come to her notice in the course of
the audit are, in all significant respects, in accordance with the specified legislation.

The financial statements have been approved by the Northwest Territories Health and Social Services Leadership
Council (Leadership Council).

Sue Cullen
Chief Executive Officer

Gloria Badari, CPA, CGA
Chief Financial Officer

August 25, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Minister responsible for the Northwest Territories Health and Social Services Authority 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of the Northwest Territories Health and Social 
Services Authority (the Authority), which comprise the statement of financial position as at       
31 March 2020, and the statement of operations and accumulated deficit, statement of changes 
in net debt and statement of cash flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2020, and the results of its operations, 
changes in its net debt, and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian 
public sector accounting standards. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control 
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Authority’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Authority or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Authority’s financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 
auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 
also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
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 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Authority’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Authority to cease to
continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Authority to express an opinion on the financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

David Irving, CPA, CA 
Principal 
for the Auditor General of Canada 

Edmonton, Canada 
25 August 2020 



Northwest Territories Health and Social Services Authority

Statement of Financial Position (All figures in thousands of dollars)

As at March 31, 2020 2019

Financial Assets
Cash $ 25,122 $ 13,953
Accounts receivable (note 4) 8,524 7,389
Due from Government of the Northwest Territories (note 5) 39,596 21,399
Due from Government of Canada 206 641

73,448 43,382

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 6) 28,635 21,180
Due to Government of the Northwest Territories (note 5) 166,978 117,181
Due to Government of Canada 49 28
Employee future benefits (note 7) 8,646 10,116

204,308 148,505

Net Debt (130,860) (105,123)

Non-Financial Assets
Inventory held for use 3,204 3,221
Prepaid expenses 665 1,040

3,869 4,261

Accumulated Deficit (note 8) $ (126,991) $ (100,862)

Contractual Obligations and Contingencies (notes 9 and 10)

Approved on behalf of the Authority:

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Northwest Territories Health and Social Services Authority

Statement of Operations and Accumulated Deficit (All figures in thousands of dollars)

For the year ended March 31, 2020 2019

Budget Actual Actual

Revenues
Recoveries from other sources $ 12,379 $ 12,663 $ 10,028
Recoveries from Nunavut 3,000 2,167 2,417
Contributions from other sources - 919 877
Interest income 400 518 571
Other income 508 843 387

Total Revenue 16,287 17,110 14,280

Expenses (note 15)
Community social programs 83,355 91,265 81,396
Ambulatory care services 65,028 69,944 65,782
Administration and support services 52,665 61,316 57,376
Nursing inpatient services 41,372 62,364 39,916
Supplementary health programs 49,603 52,664 51,209
Community health programs 41,711 46,931 44,533
Diagnostic and therapeutic services 29,700 34,056 30,180

Total Expenses 363,434 418,540 370,392

Deficit for the year before Government contributions (347,147) (401,430) (356,112)

Government contributions
Contributions from Government of the Northwest Territories - core 289,723 298,257 284,000
Contributions from Government of the Northwest Territories - other 5,021 6,585 7,546
Recoveries from Government of the Northwest Territories 22,506 27,739 26,749
Recoveries - non insured health services 14,737 16,556 13,269
Recoveries of prior year expenses (2,661) 1,185 2,581
Grant-in-kind - Government assets and services provided at no

charge (note 12) - 24,979 9,896

Total Government contributions 329,326 375,301 344,041

Annual deficit (17,821) (26,129) (12,071)

Accumulated deficit, beginning of year (100,862) (100,862) (88,791)

Accumulated deficit, end of year $ (118,683) $ (126,991) $ (100,862)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Northwest Territories Health and Social Services Authority

Statement of Changes in Net Debt (All figures in thousands of dollars)

For the year ended March 31, 2020 2019

Budget Actual Actual

Annual deficit for the year $ (17,821) $ (26,129) $ (12,071)

Adjustments
Acquisition of inventories held for use - (6,370) (6,461)
Consumption of inventories held for use - 6,387 5,975
Acquisition of prepaid expenses - (3,249) (1,156)
Use of prepaid expenses - 3,624 1,266

Change in net debt for the year (17,821) (25,737) (12,447)

Net debt, beginning of year (105,123) (105,123) (92,676)

Net debt, end of year $ (122,944) $ (130,860) $ (105,123)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Northwest Territories Health and Social Services Authority

Statement of Cash Flow (All figures in thousands of dollars)

For the year ended March 31, 2020 2019

Cash provided by
Operating transactions

Annual deficit $ (26,129) $ (12,071)

Changes on non-cash assets and liabilities
Change in Accounts receivable (1,135) (1,091)
Change in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 7,456 3,533
Net change in due to/(from) Government of the Northwest Territories 31,600 16,325
Change in employee future benefits and compensated absences (1,470) (1,409)
Net change in due to/(from) Government of Canada 456 (206)
Change in Inventory held for use 17 (486)
Change in Prepaid expenses 374 110

Cash provided by operating transactions 11,169 4,705

Increase in cash 11,169 4,705

Cash, beginning of year 13,953 9,248

Cash, end of year $ 25,122 $ 13,953

There were no financing, investing, or capital transactions during the year.

Total interest received during the year $518 (2019 - $571).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Northwest Territories Health and Social Services Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements (All figures in thousands of dollars)

March 31, 2020

1. Authority & Operations

The Authority operates pursuant to the Hospital Insurance and Health and Social Services Administration
Act (the Act) of the Northwest Territories and is an agency under Schedule A of the Financial
Administration Act (FAA) of the Northwest Territories. Accordingly, the Authority operates in accordance
with its Act and regulations, and any directives issued to it by the Minister responsible for the Authority.

The Authority was established to manage, control and operate the public health facilities and services
assigned to it by the Government of the Northwest Territories ("Government"). When the Authority was
created, six of the eight Health and Social Services Authorities (HSSAs) were amalgamated under the
Authority. The reporting entity comprises the newly created Authority and the operations from six former
HSSAs including Beaufort-Delta, Dehcho, Fort Smith, Sahtu, Yellowknife and Stanton Territorial Hospital.

Hay River Health and Social Services Authority (HRHSSA) and Tlicho Community Services Agency
(TCSA) remain outside the Authority; however, the legislation does include provisions to bring the
HRHSSA into the Authority at a later date. The Authority serves as a single integrated delivery system for
Northwest Territories health and social service programs while recognizing that the TCSA retains a unique
role through the provisions of the Tlicho Agreement. Through the Chief Executive Officer, the Authority
reports to and takes direction from the Chair of Northwest Territories Health and Social Services
Leadership Council (Leadership Council) that is comprised of nine persons appointed in accordance with
the Act, including one non-voting member. The Authority is exempt from taxation pursuant to Paragraph
149 of the federal Income Tax Act.

Budget

The budgeted figures represent the Authority's original fiscal plan for the year approved by the Leadership
Council and the Government. To be consistent with the format of the financial statements, presentation
changes have been applied as disclosed in note 17.

Going concern and economic dependence

Upon amalgamation in 2016, the predecessor HSSAs had an accumulated deficit of $50,824 which was
transferred to the Authority and included in its opening financial position. For the year ended March 31,
2020 the Authority had an annual deficit of $26,129, accumulated deficit of $126,991, liabilities of
$204,308 (including $166,978 due to the Government of the Northwest Territories), and total financial
assets of only $73,448.

The Authority was created as part a system-wide transformation of the health and social services system
in the NWT, including addressing financial pressures. The Authority remains economically dependent upon
the annual appropriations received from the Government, the Government's authorization for incurring
annual deficits, the Government’s continued support for payments of payroll costs on behalf of the
Authority combined with the Government's continued financing of the payroll liability. The Authority
anticipates that the Government will continue to provide the current financial support, while working
collaboratively with the Authority to identify ways to address the financial pressures.

Since the Authority's inception, the Government has increased its funding to the Authority each year.  The
Authority's operations have also expanded with the opening of a health centre, long-term care facility and
hospital.  The going concern basis of accounting has been deemed appropriate for the current financial
statements.
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Northwest Territories Health and Social Services Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements (All figures in thousands of dollars)

March 31, 2020

2. Basis of presentation and significant accounting policies

Basis of presentation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards as issued by the Canadian Public Sector Accounting Board. Significant aspects of the
accounting policies adopted by the Authority are as follows:

(a) Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of these financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
By their nature, these estimates are subject to measurement uncertainty. Actual results could differ
significantly from these estimates.

(b) Cash

Cash is comprised of bank account balances, net of outstanding cheques.

(c) Tangible capital assets

The Government retains ownership of all tangible capital assets (TCA) used by the Authority. The
Government’s financial statements include these TCAs and as such the Authority has no TCAs recognized
in its financial statements.

The Authority has recognized grant-in-kind revenue for the use of these TCAs provided free of charge by
the Government. In addition, the Authority has recognized a corresponding rent expense for these TCAs
based on the Government’s amortization which is the Government’s cost. This rent expense has been
allocated to the Authority’s programs in the statement of operations and accumulated deficit.

(d) Inventories held for use

Inventories consist of pharmaceuticals and general inventories including medical and surgical supplies.
Inventories held for use are valued at the lower of cost and replacement value.
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Northwest Territories Health and Social Services Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements (All figures in thousands of dollars)

March 31, 2020

2. Basis of presentation and significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Other employee future benefits and compensated absences

Under the terms and conditions of employment, employees may earn non-pension benefits for resignation,
retirement and removal costs. Eligible employees earn benefits based on years of service to a maximum
entitlement based on terms of employment. Eligibility is based on a variety of factors including place of
hire, date employment commenced and reason for termination. Benefit entitlements are paid upon
resignation, retirement or death of an employee. The expected cost of providing these benefits is
recognized as employees render service. Termination benefits are also recorded when employees are
identified for lay-off. Compensated absences include sick, special, parental and maternity leave.
Accumulating non-vesting sick and special leave are recognized in the period the employee provides
service, whereas parental and maternity leave are event driven and are recognized when the leave
commences. An actuarial valuation of the cost of these benefits (except parental and maternity leave) has
been prepared using data provided by management and assumptions based on management's best
estimates.

(f) Pensions

The Authority and its eligible employees make contributions to the Public Service Superannuation Plan
administered by the Government of Canada. These contributions represent the total liability of the
Authority and are recognized in the financial statements as expenses when they are incurred.  The
Authority is not required under present legislation to make contributions with respect to actuarial
deficiencies of the Public Service Pension Plan.

The Authority and its contracted physicians make contributions to a physician directed investment fund
administered by the Canadian Medical Association. These contributions represent the total pension liability
of the Authority and are recognized in the financial statements as expenses when they are incurred.

(g) Revenue recognition

Government transfers

Government transfers are recognized as revenues when the transfer is authorized, reasonable estimates
of the amounts can be determined and any eligibility criteria and stipulations have been met, except for
the extent that transfer stipulations give rise to an obligation that meets the definition of a liability.
Transfers are recognized as deferred revenue when transfer stipulations give rise to a liability. Transfer
revenue is recognized in the statement of operations as the stipulation liabilities are settled.

Recoveries

Government recoveries include amounts recovered for expenses paid by the Authority primarily relating to
hospital services and non-insured health benefits, are recognized as revenue when the amounts are
known.  Other recoveries are recognized when the amount is known and includes reimbursements from
Workers’ Safety and Compensation Commission and their equivalent entities throughout Canada, and
recovery of medical fees for items such as client medical travel costs.

Other revenue

Other revenue is recognized when the service is performed or the goods are provided.  The Authority may
provide uninsured medical services for which revenue is recognized and food sales as a by-product of
hospital cafeterias.
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2. Basis of presentation and significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Financial instruments

The Authority classifies its financial instruments at cost or amortized cost.

This category includes cash, accounts receivable, due (to) from Government of the Northwest Territories,
due (to) from Government of Canada, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities. They are initially
recognized at cost and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method,
less any impairment losses on financial assets. Transactions costs related to financial instruments in the
amortized cost category are added to the carrying value of the instruments. Write-downs on financial
assets in the amortized cost category are recognized when the amount of a loss is known with sufficient
precision and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Financial assets are then written down to net
recoverable value with the write down being recognized in the statement of operations.

(i) Non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are accounted for as assets by the Authority because they can be used to provide
services in future periods.  These assets do not normally provide resources to discharge the liabilities of
the Authority unless they are sold.

(j) Contractual obligations and contingencies

The nature of the Authority’s activities requires entry into operational contracts that can be significant in
relation to its current financial position or that will materially affect the level of future expenses.
Contractual obligations are commitments for operating, commercial and residential leases. Contractual
obligations are obligations of the Authority to others that will become liabilities in the future when the terms
of those contracts or agreements are met.

The contingencies of the Authority are potential liabilities which may become actual liabilities when one or
more future events occur or fail to occur. If the future event is considered likely to occur and is
quantifiable, an estimated liability is accrued. If the occurrence of the confirming future event is likely but
the amount cannot be reasonably estimated, the contingency is disclosed. If the occurrence of the
confirming event is not determinable, the contingency is disclosed.

(k) Expenses

Expenses are reported on an accrual basis. The cost of all goods and services received during the year
are expensed, except for certain services provided without charge which are described in Note 12.
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2. Basis of presentation and significant accounting policies (continued)

(l) Related parties

Related party transactions are in the normal course of operations and have been valued in these financial
statements at the exchange amount which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the
related parties. The Authority is related in terms of common ownership to all Government created
departments, public agencies and key management personnel and close family members. Key
management personnel are those having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of the Authority.  Related party transactions are recorded at the exchange amount, except for
services provided by the Government without charge. Services provided without charge include rent,
certain operating costs of the Stanton Territorial Hospital Renewal project, building utilities, payroll
processing, insurance and risk management, legal counsel, construction management, records storage,
computer operations, asset disposal, project management and translation services. These services are
provided by the Government's central agency and with the exception of rent described in Note 2 (c) as well
as certain operating costs of the Stanton Territorial Hospital Renewal project, these services cannot be
reasonably estimated. The Authority does not recognize any amounts for these services in the financial
statements.

(m) Recoveries of prior years' expenses

Recoveries of prior years’ expenses and reversal of prior years’ expense accruals in excess of actual
expenditures are reported separately from other revenues on the statement of operations and accumulated
deficit. Pursuant to the FAA, these recoveries cannot be used to increase the amount appropriated for
current year expenses.

3. Designated assets

The Authority records financial information in individual funds that are internally segregated for the
purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives. These funds are included in cash
on the Statement of Financial Position totaling $277 (2019 - $408). Funds established by the Authority
include a special project reserve $208 (2019 - $277) which are donations made to the Authority under non-
contractual conditions and a funded employee future benefits reserve $69 (2019 - $131) for funds received
for the severance liability of employees who were transferred to the Authority from the Government.
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4. Accounts receivable

The Authority administers the Government's medical travel program for both residents and non-residents
of the territory.  Non-residents of the territory accessing the medical travel program are invoiced directly
and any outstanding invoices from non-residents are included in receivables at March 31. Interest is not
charged on outstanding amounts receivable. All other payments from account receivable customers of the
Authority are expected within 30 days.

Accounts
Receivable

Allow. For
Doubtful

Accounts 2020 2019

Trade Receivables $ 13,384 $ (6,504) $ 6,880 $ 5,807
Government of Nunavut 433 (3) 430 664
Due from WSCC 447 - 447 679
Due from related parties (note 14) 805 (38) 767 239

Total accounts receivable $ 15,069 $ (6,545) $ 8,524 $ 7,389

5. Due from/(to) Government of the Northwest Territories

For contribution agreements, the Authority receives transfer payments from the Government on a monthly
basis. For other recoveries, the Authority receives payments within 30 days of submitting an invoice.

Due from Government of the
Northwest Territories

Accounts
Receivable

Allow. For
Doubtful

Accounts 2020 2019

Health and Social Services $ 38,579 $ - $ 38,579 $ 18,430
Finance 942 - 942 2,894
Education, Culture and Employment 43 - 43 10
Justice 23 - 23 65
Municipal and Community Affairs 9 - 9 -

Total due from Government of the
Northwest Territories $ 39,596 $ - $ 39,596 $ 21,399

Due to Government of the Northwest Territories 2020 2019

Liability for payroll services provided by the Government $ 155,501 $ 108,866
Health and Social Services 8,141 3,610
Finance 3,082 4,181
Infrastructure 254 346
Municipal and Community Affairs - 178

Total due to Government of the Northwest Territories $ 166,978 $ 117,181

The due to Government of the Northwest Territories is unsecured, without interest and due on demand.
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6. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

The Authority follows the Government for payment practices of accounts payable invoices and pays
northern vendors within 20 days and all other vendors within 30 days.  The Authority administers the
Government's Medical travel program for residents of the Northwest Territories and reimbursement of
medical related travel expenses are paid to residents accessing the program accordingly.  These payables
are included in the trade payable.

2020 2019

Trade payable $ 20,750 $ 13,661
Annual leave and lieu time 7,505 7,092
Due to related parties (note 14) 380 427

Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 28,635 $ 21,180

7. Other employee future benefits (other than pensions) and compensated absences

The Authority provides severance (resignation and retirement), removal and compensated absence (sick,
special, maternity and parental leave) benefits to its employees. The benefit plans are not pre-funded and
thus have no assets, resulting in a plan deficit equal to the accrued benefit obligation. Severance benefits
are paid to Authority employees based on the type of termination (e.g. resignation versus retirement) and
appropriate combinations that include inputs such as when the employee was hired, the rate of pay, the
number of years of continuous employment and age and the benefit is subject to maximum benefit limits.
Removal benefits are subject to several criteria, the main ones being location of hire, employee category
and length of service. The benefits under these two categories were valued using the projected unit credit
methodology.

Compensated absence benefits generally accrue as employees render service and are paid upon the
occurrence of an event resulting in eligibility for benefits under the terms of the plan. Events include, but
are not limited to employee or dependent illness, or death of an immediate family member. Non-accruing
benefits include maternity and parental leave. Benefits that accrue under compensated absence benefits
were actuarially valued using the expected utilization methodology.
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7. Other employee future benefits and compensated absences (continued)
Valuation results

The most recent actuarial valuation was completed as at February 15, 2019.   The results were
extrapolated to March 31, 2020.  The effective date of the next actuarial valuation is March 31, 2022.

Severance
and Removal

Compensated
absences 2020 2019

Changes in obligation

Accrued benefit obligations, beginning of year $ 8,681 $ 1,698 $ 10,379 $ 8,587
Current period benefit cost 516 159 675 622
Interest accrued 257 54 311 315
Benefits payments (1,505) (1,399) (2,904) (2,003)
Actuarial (gain)/loss (652) 1,118 466 2,858

Accrued benefit obligations, end of year 7,297 1,630 8,927 10,379

Unamortized net actuarial gain/(loss) 1,235 (2,396) (1,161) (669)

Net future obligation 8,532 (766) 7,766 9,710

Other compensated absences - 880 880 406

Total employee future benefits and
compensated absences $ 8,532 $ 114 $ 8,646 $ 10,116

Benefits expense

Current period benefit cost $ 516 $ 160 $ 676 $ 622
Interest accrued 257 54 311 315
Amortization of actuarial (gain)/loss (202) 174 (28) (372)

$ 571 $ 388 $ 959 $ 565

The discount rate used to determine the accrued benefit obligation is an average of 2.7% (2019 - 3.2%).
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8. Accumulated deficit
2020 2019

Accumulated deficit upon amalgamation in 2016 $ 50,824 $ 50,824
Addition to the accumulated deficit since amalgamation 76,167 50,038

Accumulated deficit $ 126,991 $ 100,862

9. Contractual obligations

The Authority has entered into agreements for equipment, operations and services (Government medical
travel program) or is contractually committed to, the following expenses payable subsequent to March 31,
2020:

Expires
in

Fiscal
Year 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

2026 and
There-

after Total

Equipment leases 2027 $ 317 $ 276 $ 244 $ 181 $ 167 $ 93 $ 1,278
Operational leases 2022 837 7 - - - - 844
Service contracts 2027 25,301 20,888 17,130 521 480 1,031 65,351

$26,455 $21,171 $17,374 $ 702 $ 647 $ 1,124 $ 67,473

10. Contingencies

In the normal course of operations, the Authority is subject to claims and pending and threatened litigation
against the Authority and its staff.  At year end, the Authority estimated the total claimed amount for which
the outcome is not determinable at $10 (2019 - $10).  No provision for such claims has been made in
these financial statements as it is not determinable that any future event will confirm that a liability has
been incurred as at March 31, 2020.

11. Trust assets under administration

The authority administers $242 (2019 - $204) of trust assets, consisting of cash held on behalf of patients,
which are not included in the reported Authority's assets and liabilities.
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12. Government assets and services provided at no charge

During the year, the Authority received without charge from the Government, services including building
utilities, repairs and maintenance, payroll processing, insurance and risk management, legal counsel,
construction management, records storage, computer operations, asset disposal, project management and
translation services. The Government provides the services either directly or through its agencies or public
private partnership arrangements.  The services are part of the central agency role of the Government and
no estimate can be reasonably determined.

The Government provides without charge the use of buildings, equipment, leasehold improvements,
mainframe and software systems, medical equipment and vehicles for use in program and service
delivery.  These would have cost the Authority an estimated $18,079 (2019 - $9,896) based on the
calculated depreciation expense by the Government and have been recognized as rent expense with a
corresponding grant-in-kind in the Statement of Operations and Accumulated Deficit.

Also, the Government provides without charge certain operating costs of the Stanton Territorial Hospital
Renewal project.  These would have cost the Authority an estimated $6,900 (2019 - $nil) based on the
service payments made by the Government under the public private partnership (P3) agreement and have
been recognized as contracted services expense with a corresponding grant-in-kind in the Statement of
Operations and Accumulated Deficit.

13. Pensions

All eligible employees participate in Canada’s Public Service Pension Plan (PSPP). The PSPP provides
benefits based on the number of years of pensionable service to a maximum of 35 years. Benefits are
determined by a formula set out in the legislation; they are not based on the financial status of the pension
plan. The basic benefit formula is two percent per year of pensionable service multiplied by the average of
the best five consecutive years of earnings.

The public service pension plan was amended during 2013 which raised the normal retirement age and
other age related thresholds from age 60 to age 65 for new members joining the plan on or after January
1, 2013. For members with start dates before January 1, 2013, the normal retirement age remains age 60.
The employer contribution rate effective at the end of the year is 1.01 times (2019 – 1.01) the employees’
contributions for employees who started prior to January 2013 and 1.0 times (2019 – 1.0) the employees’
contributions for all other employees.

The Authority and the contracted physician’s contribute to the Physician Retirement Income Benefit
(PRIB). The Physician’s contribution rate is 7.5 percent of the Physician’s base salary, minus the
Physician’s contribution to the Canada Pension Plan. The Authority contribution rate is 15 percent of the
Physician’s base salary, minus the Employer’s contribution to the Canada Pension Plan on behalf on the
Physician. The Authority contributed $10,891 (2019 – $9,966) to PSPP and $2,135 (2019 – $2,290) to the
Physician’s fund. The employee’s contributions were $10,748 (2019 – $9,977) and $1,006 (2019 – $1,069)
respectively.
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14. Related parties

Related party transactions not disclosed elsewhere are as follows:

Due from related parties
Accounts

Receivable

Allow. For
Doubtful

Accounts Net 2020 Net 2019

Hay River Health and Social Services Authority $ 29 $ - $ 29 $ 115
Tlicho Community Services Agency 745 (12) 733 97
Northwest Territories Housing Corporation 4 - 4 1
Northwest Territories Power Corporation 1 - 1 -
Stanton Territorial Hospital Foundation - - - 23
Fort Good Hope Housing Authority - - - 3
Yellowknife Education District #1 26 (26) - -

$ 805 $ (38) $ 767 $ 239

Due to related parties: 2020 2019

Aurora College $ 175 $ 214
Tlicho Community Services Agency 119 39
Northwest Territories Housing Corporation 26 164
Hay River Health and Social Services Authority 42 2
Fuel Services Division 11 -
Northwest Territories Power Corporation 6 4
GNWT - Infrastructure - 2
Marine Transportation Services (MTS) Revolving Fund 1 -
NWT Business Development and Investment Corporation - 1
Beaufort Delta Divisional Education Council - 1

$ 380 $ 427

Revenues from related parties: 2020 2019

Tlicho Community Services Agency $ 809 $ 855
Hay River Health and Social Services Authority 187 389
NWT Power Corporation 105 76
GNWT - Education, Culture and Employment 83 109
Yellowknife Education District #1 26 -
Yellowknife Public Denominational District Education Authority

(Yellowknife Catholic School Board) 5 -
GNWT - Municipal and Community Affairs 3 -
Stanton Territorial Hospital Foundation - 142

$ 1,218 $ 1,571

29



Northwest Territories Health and Social Services Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements (All figures in thousands of dollars)

March 31, 2020

14. Related parties (continued)

Expenses paid to related parties: 2020 2019

Government of the Northwest Territories $ 317 $ 42
Tlicho Community Services Agency 369 651
Hay River Health and Social Services Authority 175 135
Northwest Territories Housing Corporation & local housing

authorities 105 166
Northwest Territories Power Corporation 34 72
Fuel Services Division 20 -
Marine Transportation Services (MTS) Revolving Fund 2 -
NWT Business Development and Investment Corporation 2 3
Stanton Territorial Hospital Foundation 1 50
Aurora College - 269
Yellowknife Public Denominational District Education Authority

(Yellowknife Catholic School Board) - 86
Dehcho Division Education Council - 5
Beaufort Delta Divisional Education Council - 2

$ 1,025 $ 1,481

15. Expenses by object

2020 2019

Compensation $ 211,128 $ 191,669
Contracted out services 84,343 75,924
Medical travel and other travel 29,167 27,529
Contributions 18,881 18,292
Rent (note 12) 18,079 9,896
Supplies 18,068 14,565
Compensation - locums 17,121 15,441
Administration 12,087 9,026
Program expenses 5,419 4,746
Equipment expense 2,599 2,561
Valuation allowances 1,648 743

Total expenses $ 418,540 $ 370,392
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16. Financial Instruments

The Authority is exposed to credit and liquidity risks from its financial instruments.  Qualitative and
quantitative analysis of the significant risk from the Authority's financial instruments by type of risk is
provided below:

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss of the Authority if a debtor fails to make payments of interest and
principal when due.  The Authority is exposed to this risk relating to its cash, and accounts receivable.

The Authority holds its cash with federally regulated chartered banks who are insured by the Canadian
Deposit Insurance Corporation.  In the event of default, the Authority's cash is insured up to $100.

Accounts receivable are due from various governments, government agencies, corporations and
individuals.  Credit risk related to accounts receivable is mitigated by internal controls as well as policies
and oversight over arrears for ultimate collection.  Management has determined that a portion of accounts
receivable are impaired based on specific identification as well as age of receivables.  These amounts are
as disclosed in Note 4.

The Authority's maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the financial assets for a total of
$73,448 (2019 - $43,382).

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk that customer(s) has a significant portion (more than ten percent) of
the total accounts receivable balance and thus there is a higher risk to the Authority in the event of a
default.  The Authority does have concentration of credit risk.  At March 31, 2020, receivables from the
Government comprised 82% of the total outstanding accounts receivables (2019 - 74%). The Authority
reduces this risk by monitoring overdue balances.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Authority will not be able to meet all cash outflow obligations as they come
due. The Authority mitigates this risk by monitoring cash activities and expected outflows through
budgeting, deferring repayment to the Government (Note 1) and maintaining an adequate amount of cash
to cover unexpected cash outflows should they arise.  All of the Authority's financial assets and financial
liabilities as at March 31, 2020 mature within the next six months.

Total financial assets are $73,448 (2019 - $43,382) and financial liabilities are $204,308 (2019 - $148,505).
The Authority has disclosed future financial liabilities and contractual obligations in Note 9. There have
been no significant changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk or policies, procedures, and
methods used to measure the risk.
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17. Budget

The approved budget have been reclassified where applicable to conform to the presentation used in
financial statements as follows:

Budget per
Statement of

Operations
and

Accumulated
Deficit

Government
Approved

Budget Difference
Revenue

Recoveries from other sources $ 12,379 $ 17,400 $ (5,021)
Recoveries from Nunavut 3,000 3,000 -
Interest income 400 400 -
Other income 508 508 -

Total Revenue 16,287 21,308 (5,021)

Expenses
Undistributed - 559 (559)
Community social programs 83,355 37,639 45,716
Ambulatory care services 65,028 121,966 (56,938)
Administration and support services 52,665 61,812 (9,147)
Supplementary health programs 49,603 41,861 7,742
Nursing inpatient services 41,372 40,726 646
Diagnostic and therapeutic services 29,700 29,675 25
Community health programs 41,711 29,196 12,515

Total Expenses 363,434 363,434 -

Government contributions
Contributions from Government of the Northwest
Territories - core 289,723 289,723 -
Contributions from Government of the Northwest
Territories - other 5,021 - 5,021
Recoveries from Government of the Northwest
Territories 22,506 22,506 -
Recoveries - non insured health services 14,737 14,737 -
Recoveries of prior year expenses (2,661) (2,661) -

Total Government contributions 329,326 324,305 5,021

Annual deficit $ (17,821) $ (17,821) $ -
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17. Budget (continued)

The Authority's budget is approved at the start of the fiscal year.  Adjustments to the budget relating to
government funding are approved throughout the fiscal year through Notice of Target Adjustments
(NOTA). The changes for the 2019-2020 fiscal year are as follows:

Original
Budget

Increase
(Decrease)

Revised
Budget

Actual
Amount*

Over
(Under)
Budget

Revenue
Recoveries from other sources $ 12,379 $ - $ 12,379 $ 12,663 $ 284
Recoveries from Nunavut 3,000 - 3,000 2,167 (833)
Contributions from other sources - - - 919 919
Interest income 400 - 400 518 118
Other income 508 - 508 843 335

Total Revenue 16,287 - 16,287 17,110 823

Expenses
Community social programs 83,355 (923) 82,432 90,520 8,088
Ambulatory care services 65,028 551 65,579 69,628 4,049
Administration and support services 52,665 1,407 54,072 61,138 7,066
Nursing inpatient services 41,372 869 42,241 43,862 1,621
Supplementary health programs 49,603 1,620 51,223 52,664 1,441
Community health programs 41,711 2,524 44,235 43,378 (857)
Diagnostic and therapeutic services 29,700 1,220 30,920 32,371 1,451

Total Expenses 363,434 7,268 370,702 393,561 22,859

Government contributions
Contributions from Government of the Northwest

Territories - core 289,723 7,268 296,991 298,257 1,266
Contributions from Government of the Northwest

Territories - other 5,021 - 5,021 6,585 1,564
Recoveries from Government of the Northwest

Territories 22,506 - 22,506 27,739 5,233
Recoveries - Non-insured health services 14,737 - 14,737 16,556 1,819
Recoveries of prior year expenses (2,661) - (2,661) 1,185 3,846

Total Government contributions 329,326 7,268 336,594 350,322 13,728

Annual deficit $ (17,821) $ - $ (17,821) $ (26,129) $ (8,308)

* The actual amounts used in this analysis differs from the Statement of Operations and Accumulated
Deficit.  The impact of the Grant-in-kind - Government assets and services provided at no charge is not
included in this analysis because the Authority does not budget for Grant-in-kind.
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18. Comparative figures

The financial statements have been reclassified where applicable to conform to the presentation used in
the current year. During the year, the Authority completed its transition to one central accounting system
during which review and update to the chart of accounts was undertaken; as a result, programs that are
similar in nature were consolidated into the same functional areas.

19. Impact of COVID-19 pandemic response

On March 22, 2020, the Government of the Northwest Territories declared a public health emergency in
response to the coronavirus disease 2019 ("COVID-19") pandemic.

The duration and impact of COVID-19 is unknown at this time and it is not possible to reliably estimate the
impact that the severity and length of COVID-19 will have on the financial results and condition of the
Authority in future periods.  There is no material impact to the amounts recognized within the 2020
financial statements as a result of COVID-19.

Pursuant to an April 14, 2020 federal funding announcement, the Government of Canada will provide to
the Government of the Northwest Territories funding for emergency response to COVID-19, to a maximum
of $23.4 million for health and social services preparations and response and $8.7 million for air services.
It is expected that some of this funding will subsequently flow to the Authority; however, the timing and
amounts cannot be determined at this time.
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